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Corporate Information
LFEEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Lai Guanglin (Chairman)

Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Lai Fulin

Non-executive Director

Mr. U Kean Seng

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson
Mr. Chen Wei Wen
Ms. Yang Li

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson (Chairman)
Mr. U Kean Seng
Mr. Chen Wei Wen

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Ms. Yang Li (Chairman)

Mr. Lai Guanglin
Mr. Chen Wei Wen

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Lai Guanglin (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Wei Wen
Ms. Yang Li

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheng Siu Kwan

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Appleby Management (Bermuda) Ltd
Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

Citibank, N.A., Hong Kong Branch

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

Bank SinoPac, Hong Kong Branch

East West Bank, Hong Kong Branch

China Citic International Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon’s Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 12
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS

12th Floor, Phase |, Austin Tower
22-26A Austin Avenue

Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2728 7237

Fax: (852) 2387 2999
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Corporate Information
LFEEH

OTHER PLACES OF BUSINESS
HONG KONG AND MACAU

Retail shops

G/F, 687 Shanghai Street
Mongkok, Kowloon
Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2395 0181
Fax: (852) 2787 3421

G/F, Tak Fam Building

18 Tak Wah Street

Tsuen Wan, New Territories
Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2473 3660

Fax: (852) 2442 2766

G/F, 102 Thomson Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2866 6001
Fax: (852) 2866 6339

Rua Da Ribeira Do Patane No. 13, Macau
Tel: (853) 2855 3693
Fax: (853) 2895 1020

Warehouse

Sections M and N of Lot 3719 in DD104
Yuen Long, New Territories

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2471 9048

Fax: (852) 2482 1298

WEBSITE

http://www.softpower.hk
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Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present to our shareholders the
annual report of Softpower International Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 increased to HK$611.5 million from
HK$553.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2014, representing an increase of approximately
10.4%. The gross profit margin was approximately
27.1% for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014:
24.9%). The profit attributable to equity shareholders
was approximately HK$34.0 million for the year under
review, representing an increase of approximately
56.7% over the previous year of approximately
HK$21.7 million. Basic earnings per share was HK2.55
cents (2014: HK1.63 cents).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of the Company does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

2015 marked another year of growth in revenue and
net profit to the Group. Despite the fierce market
competition, we managed to deliver the positive
contribution to the Group. In the year under review, the
Group reported a revenue of HK$611.5 milion from
our core business of pipes and fittings, a 10.4% year-
on-year increase. The increase in revenue of the Group
was mainly driven by the favorable market condition in
Hong Kong and Macau in 2015. The market demand
for the supply of building materials remained strong.
Benefitting from the casinos expansion and resort
hotels projects in Macau as well as Tai Po Water
Treatment Project in Hong Kong, our pipes and fittings
business continued to grow.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2015, the cash and bank balances
of the Group were approximately HK$215.4 million
(2014: HK$190.4 million) including pledged bank
deposits, which amounted to HK$61.0 million (2014:
HK$68.7 million).
capital requirement has been financed by its internal

Basically the Group’s working

resources. The funds generated from operations and
the available banking facilities will enable the Group to
meet its future working capital requirements.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had aggregate
banking facilities of trade finance of approximately
HK$238.4 million (2014: HK$179.9 million),
approximately HK$84.9 million (2014: HK$83.9 million)
was utilised. The Group’s total borrowings stood at
approximately HK$73.0 million (2014: HK$76.0 million),
the entire amount of borrowings for both years end will
mature within one year.

The entire amount of borrowings outstanding as at 31
December 2015 was approximately HK$73.0 million
(2014: HK$76.0 million). 29% (2014: 34%) and 71%
(2014: 66%) of borrowings were subject to floating and
fixed rates respectively.

The gearing ratio as measured by total bank
borrowings to total equity was approximately 19.0% as
at 31 December 2015 (2014: 21.6%).

As at 31 December 2014 and 2015, the entire amount
of the Group’s borrowings was denominated in Hong
Kong dollars.

The Group conducts its business transactions mainly in
Hong Kong dollar, Macau Pataca, Renminbi and United
States dollar. In order to manage foreign exchange
risk, the Group has been closely monitoring its foreign
currency exposure and will arrange for any hedging
facilities if necessary.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THBMWESH

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, certain bank deposits held
by subsidiaries of the Group with an aggregate carrying
amounts of approximately HK$61.0 milion (2014:
HK$68.7 million) were pledged to banks for banking
facilities.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2014 and 2015.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had outstanding
commitments in respect of future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable lease of approximately
HK$34.1 million (2014: HK$47.9 million).

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had outstanding
commitments in respect of acquisition of motor
vehicles of approximately HK$1.3 million (2014: Nil).

STAFF AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed a total
of 172 employees (2014: 160). Total employee benefit
expenses for the year ended 31 December 2015 was
approximately HK$69.0 million (2014: HK$63.5 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Remuneration policy is reviewed annually and certain
staff members are entitled to sales commission. In
addition to the basic salaries and contributions to
the mandatory provident fund, the Group also pays
discretionary bonus and provides staff with other
benefits including medical scheme to the employees
in Hong Kong. The Group contributes to an employee
pension scheme established by the PRC Government
which undertakes to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired employees
of the Group in Mainland China. The Group adopted
a share option scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to motivate the eligible directors
and employees of the Group in recognition of their
contributions to the Group.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EFEREREBEEBEARCEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lai Guanglin, aged 52, was appointed as
a director and the Chairman of the board of the
directors of the Company in February 2009. He is
also the Chairman of the Nomination Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company. The Company is a leading provider to
the construction sector offering a wide range of pipe
related products, fittings, comprehensive services and
solutions to the contractors, designers, consultants
and government agencies in Hong Kong and Macau.
Mr. Lai’'s wholly owned investment vehicle, Singapore
Zhongxin Investment Company Limited, is the majority
shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Lai is the founder and the Chairman of the board
of directors of Agria Corporation which is listed on
the New York Stock Exchange. Agria Corporation
is primarily engaged in research and development,
production and sale of crop seeds to the agricultural
sector in Australia, New Zealand, China and South
America and the provision of rural services to the
farmers in New Zealand and South America. Agria
Corporation operates the Southern Hemisphere’s
largest forage seed business in New Zealand. The
activities in forage seeds and rural services are carried
out by PGG Wrightson Limited (“PGW”) which is a
subsidiary of Agria Corporation. PGW is a company
listed on the New Zealand Stock Exchange. Mr. Lai
was appointed as a director of PGW in December 2009
and as the Chairman of the Board of the Directors
of PGW in October 2013. Mr. Lai’s wholly owned
investment vehicle, Brothers Capital Limited, is Agria
Corporation’s largest shareholder.

Mr. Lai has extensive experience in investments,
acquisitions and operation management. Mr. Lai has
established many other enterprises in China, Hong
Kong and internationally, in particular, animation,
logistics and transportation, pharmaceutical sectors,
etc. He takes a leading role in respect of strategic
planning and business development in his investment
portfolio.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Lai is the Vice Chairman of Shenzhen General
Chamber of Commerce in China and the Vice
Chairman of Chinese Chamber of Commerce in New
Zealand.

Mr. Lai holds Bachelor’'s degree in accounting from
Monash University, Melbourne, Australia and a Master
of business administration in finance from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow certified public
accountant in Australia. Mr. Lai is a Fellow of Monash
University and also the member of Global Advisory
Council of Faculty of Business and Economics, Monash
University.

Mr. Lai is the elder brother of Mr. Lai Fulin, an Executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Lai is the sole director of
Singapore Zhongxin Investment Company Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company which has an
interest in the shares of the Company that is required
to be disclosed under Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng, aged 51, was appointed as
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company in May 2009. Mr. Yu is responsible for
managing overall daily operations of the Group and the
implementation of the Group’s development strategies.

Mr. Yu has over 20 years of experience in investment
management, investment banking and general
management of listed companies. Mr. Yu began his
career at Mackenzie Financial Corporation in Toronto,
Canada as an investment analyst in 1989 and since
then, he has served several major financial corporations
including J.P. Morgan, Deutsche Bank and CITIC
Capital. In addition to his vast investment banking and
management experience, Mr. Yu has also managed
listed companies such as New World Cyberbase
Limited and Asia Logistics Holdings Limited in Hong
Kong. During his past career, Mr. Yu has focused
on direct investment and mergers and acquisitions
activities in sectors including construction materials,
infrastructure, energy, technologies, media and financial
services.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREBARCEE

Mr. Yu holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in English
Literature from the Beijing Foreign Studies University, a
Master of arts degree in Education from the University
of Toronto and a master’s degree in business
administration from the University of Western Ontario,
Canada.

Mr. Yu is a director of King Jade Holdings Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company which has an
interest in the shares of the Company that is required
to be disclosed under Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

Mr. Lai Fulin, aged 50, was appointed as Executive
Director of the Company in October 2009. Mr. Lai
is Head of Production & Purchasing of the Group
and mainly responsible for the overall operation and
management of the production and purchasing
department. Mr. Lai has over 20 years of experience
in the banking sector, investments management and
general management of companies in China. Mr. Lai
worked in the Bank of China in Shenzhen during 1986
to 2001. During 1995 to 2001, he was the deputy
general manager of a subsidiary of Bank of China
dealing with businesses in the securities industry.
During 2002 to 2008, Mr. Lai was the general manager
of Shenzhen Huao Guanli Technologies Company
Limited CRINITHERBE W EHREEX AR AF). Mr. Lai
holds a certificate of graduation in Chinese Language

o

from Shenzhen Institute of Education G125 £6%) .
Mr. Lai is the younger brother of Mr. Lai Guanglin, the

controlling shareholder, the Chairman and Executive
Director of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. U Kean Seng, aged 49, was appointed as
Non-executive Director of the Company in February
2009. He is also a member of the Audit Committee
of the Company. Mr. U has more than 18 years of
experience in legal practice. Mr. U specialises in the
area of corporate law and corporate finance. Mr.
U was admitted to the Supreme Court of Victoria,
Australia in 1991, the Singapore Bar in 1993 and
the Roll of Solicitors for England and Wales in 2009.
Mr. U holds a bachelor’'s degree in economics and
a bachelor’s degree in laws (Honours) from Monash
University, Australia. Mr. U currently holds the
professional appointment as the Head of Corporate
and Legal Affairs of Agria Corporation, a company
listed on the New York Stock Exchange. Brothers
Capital Limited, an investment vehicle wholly-owned
by Mr. Lai Guanglin, is the largest shareholder of Agria
Corporation. Mr. U was appointed as a director of
PGG Wrightson Limited, a company listed on the New
Zealand Stock Exchange, on 4 December 2012. Mr. U
served as an independent director of GRP Limited, a
company listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”), from 7 June 2004 to 31
December 2012 and served as an independent director
of Miyoshi Precision Limited, a company listed on the
SGX-ST, from 13 February 2004 to 27 December
2013.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREBARCEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson, aged 48, was
appointed as Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company in February 2009. He is also the
Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company.
Mr. Wong is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and member
of Australia CPA and Australian Institute of Banking
and Finance. He holds a master of commerce degree,
specializing in banking and finance from the University
of New South Wales. With more than 20 years of
experience in PricewaterhouseCoopers and Ernst and
Young, Mr. Wong specializes in the area of auditing
banks and listed companies. Mr. Wong is currently the
chief financial officer of China Animation Characters
Company Limited (Stock code: 1566, a company listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited “HKSE”)
and an independent non-executive director of Ping An
Securities Group (Holdings) Limited (Stock code: 231,
a company listed on HKSE). Mr. Wong had served as
an independent non-executive director of PanAsialum
Holdings Company Limited (Stock code: 2078, a
company listed on HKSE) from 18 January 2013 to 4
July 2014.

Mr. Chen Wei Wen, aged 47, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in April 2010. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Chen holds a
Bachelor of Business (Accounting) from Monash
University, Australia. Mr. Chen worked as a general
manager of Guangzhou Futian Trading Company
Ltd (BMNTHEREZHERALDF) from 1997 to 2005.
Since November 2004, Mr. Chen was appointed as
chief operating officer of Guangzhou Kanxin Polymer
Technology Co., Ltd (BMNMELED TFEHEERAR])
which is an affiliated company of Guangzhou Futian
Trading Company Ltd(BMTEAEZERAF).
Mr. Chen was also appointed as director and general
manager of Fuda Enterprises Limited (& M35 R
‘A]) since February 1998.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Ms. Yang Li, aged 44, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in January
2011. She is also the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Ms. Yang holds a
master degree in Law from Renmin University of
China, specializing in philosophy, moral and political
education. From July 1993 to May 2005, Ms. Yang
taught in Chinese People’s Public Security University
as assistant lecturer, lecturer and associate professor.
From June 2005 to November 2006, Ms. Yang acted
as deputy general manager of the administration
and management department of China Exhibition
Investment and Development Corporation Ltd.
From December 2006 to August 2011, she acted
as manager, supervisor and general manager of the
administration department of =ERER (Jb7)DEk
ZIHHMRAR]. Ms. Yang has extensive experience
in corporate operation, human resources and
administration and management.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chow Wai Koon, Timothy, aged 46, was
appointed as Chief Operating Officer of the Company
in January 2015. Mr. Chow is responsible for directing,
administering and co-ordinating the operational
activities of the Group. He is also responsible for
recommending and developing strategies, goals and
policies of the Group.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chow devoted
almost 20 years to Hewlett-Packard group (“HP”), a
leading global IT provider of products, technologies,
software, solutions and services. While at HP, Mr.
Chow held several senior positions in sales, marketing,
business planning and finance in the Asia Pacific region
including China, Australia and Singapore.
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EEREREBARCEE

Mr. Chow has extensive experience in sales and
marketing in the Asia Pacific region, particularly
China, across consumer, commercial and enterprise
customers. In addition, Mr. Chow has robust
knowledge of end-to-end systems from research
and development, manufacturing and distribution to
channel, communication and customer support.

Mr. Chow holds a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from the Macquarie Graduate School
of Management, Australia, and a Bachelor’s Degree
of Accountancy from the Nanyang Technological
University, Singapore.

Mr. Cheng Siu Kwan, aged 46, joined the Company
as the Financial Controller in December 2012 and
has been appointed as the Company Secretary of
the Company in February 2013. Mr. Cheng is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Cheng held various finance positions at
a number of companies listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and has over 20 years of
experience in auditing, finance and accounting.

Ms. Chan Yuk Fan, aged 52, joined the Group in
1982 and has held a number of leadership roles in the
Group’s retail, project sales and procurement division.
Ms. Chan currently is the Deputy Managing Director
of Bun Kee (International) Limited, the pipe trading
subsidiary of the Group and is mainly responsible
for the leadership, control and long-term business
development of the Company. She has extensive
experience and knowledge in managing a successful
piping distribution operation. She is a member of Lions
Club.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Lai Kui Chung, aged 58, joined the Group in
1979 and is the Warehouse Director of the pipe
trading subsidiary, Bun Kee (International) Limited.
Mr. Lai is responsible for the warehouse and
transportation activities of the Group. He has over 36
years of experience in supervising warehouse and
transportation operations. Mr. Lai holds a Certificate in
Store Supervision from a technical institute.

Mr. Ku Chun Ming, aged 50, joined the Group in
1993 and is the Sales Director of the pipe trading
subsidiary, Bun Kee (International) Limited. Mr. Ku
is responsible for the Group’s sales operations, new
product development and promotion activities including
the exhibitions and seminars. He has over 29 years of
experience in sales and marketing activities.
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Softpower International Limited* (the “Company”) is
committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance. The board of directors of the Company
(the “Board”) and management maintain and enhance
the policies and practices of the Company on a timely,
transparent, effective and reasonable manner, so as
to maintain good, solid and reasonable corporate
governance. The Company believes that good
corporate governance is not only in the interest of
shareholders and investors but also in the interest of
the Company. The Company will continue to raise the
standard to formalize the best practice of corporate
governance as far as we could.

* Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the special
general meeting held on 13 November 2015, the name
of the Company was changed from “China Pipe Group
Limited” to “Softpower International Limited” and the

secondary name of the Company was changed from “ &
BEEEEBRAT" to“BHBEIFREARZAF", both effective
from 17 November 2015.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the code provisions
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
as stated in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year
ended 31 December 2015.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rule (the
“Model Code”). Having made specific enquiry with the
directors of the Company (“Directors”), all Directors
confirmed that they have fully complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code during
the year ended 31 December 2015.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board comprises seven Directors, including three
executive Directors, Mr. Lai Guanglin (the Chairman
of the Company), Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng (the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company) and Mr. Lai Fulin; a
non-executive Director, Mr. U Kean Seng; and three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Wong Yee
Shuen, Wilson, Mr. Chen Wei Wen and Ms. Yang Li,
one of whom namely, Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson
has appropriate professional accounting experience
and expertise. Biographical details of the Directors
are set out in the section headed “BIOGRAPHICAL
DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT” of this Annual Report.

Throughout the year, the Board has at least one-third in
number of its members comprising independent non-
executive Directors under Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules.

Each of the non-executive Directors (including the
independent non-executive Directors) has entered into
a service contract with the Company and appointed
for a term of one year. All Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with
the bye-laws of the Company.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors
has made an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all the independent non-
executive Directors meet the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
that they are independent.

To the best knowledge of the Company, except that
Mr. Lai Guanglin is the elder brother of Mr. Lai Fulin,
there is no relationship (including financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship) among
members of the Board.
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The Board has balance of skills, knowledge and
experience appropriate for the requirements of
the business and to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy. The Board membership is covered
by professionally qualified and widely experienced
personnel to bring in valuable contributions and
different professional advices and consultancy for
development of the Company. All Directors have
separate and independent access to the advice
and services of the senior management and the
company secretary with a view to ensuring the board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed. The principal functions of the Board are to
supervise the management of the business and affairs;
to approve the strategic plans, investment and funding
decision; to review the Group’s financial performance
and operating initiatives.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for
formulating overall strategy and polices, monitoring and
controlling the performance of the Group. In addition
to its overall supervisory role, the Board also retains
specific responsibilities such as approving financial
accounts, approving annual budget, recommending
dividend payments, approving policies relating to the
Board’s compliance, etc. whilst managing the Group’s
day-to-day operations is the responsibility of the
management of the Group (the “Management”) such as
implementing internal control, business strategies and
plans set by the Board, etc.. When the Board delegates
certain aspects of its management and administration
functions to the Management, it has given clear
directions as to the powers of the Management.

Continuous Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director has received
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction
on appointment so as to ensure that he/she has
appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and that he/she is fully aware
of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules, legal

and other regulatory requirements.
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The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments
to or updates on the relevant laws, rules and
regulations.

In addition, all Directors are provided with monthly
updates on the Company’s performance, position and
prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the code provision A.6.5 of the Code on Directors’
training. During the Year, all Directors have participated
in continuous professional development by attending
seminars and/or reading materials on the following
topics to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
and provided a record of training to the Company.

Name of Directors EFElE
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PR Z A

Mr. Lai Guanglin Lai Guanglin %t 4 CF'L*R
Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng BIRZHESTE C'L*R
Mr. Lai Fulin Pt e C'L'R
Mr. U Kean Seng REKEE C'L'R
Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson =EAEEE CF'L 'R
Mr. Chen Wei Wen BRI SE4E C'L'R
Ms. Yang Li THHI 2+ C'L'R
Note: Mz -

C: Corporate Governance C: EER

F: Finance and Accounting F: B RET

L: Listing Rules Updates L AR AE BT
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ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The position of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company are held by separate
individuals. The role of the Chairman is separated from
that of the Chief Executive Officer. Such division of
responsibilities helps to reinforce their independence
and accountability.

The Chairman of the Company, Mr. Lai Guanglin,
takes up the role of providing leadership for the Board
and ensures that the Board works effectively and
discharges its responsibility properly. With the support
of executive Directors and the Company Secretary, the
Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly
briefed on issues arising at board meetings and receive
adequate and reliable information in a timely manner.
Mr. Lai also ensures that good corporate governance
practice is in force from time to time, and all key issues
are discussed by the Board in a timely manner.

The Chief Executive Officer of the Company, Mr. Yu
Ben Ansheng, is responsible for managing overall
daily operations of the Group, the implementation of
the Group’s development strategies and plans and
to perform other responsibilities as assigned by the
Board.
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BOARD MEETING

The Board meets regularly, and at least four times a
year, additional meetings are convened when deemed
necessary by the Board. Board members are provided
with complete, adequate and timely information to
allow the Directors to fulfill their duties properly. In
addition, Directors have full access to information
on the Group and independent professional advice
whenever deemed necessary by the Directors.

In addition, the Chairman and non-executive Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors)
meet at least once every year without the presence of
executive Directors.

During the year, the Board met regularly and held
seven meetings. Notices and board papers were
given to all Directors prior to the board meetings in
accordance with the Code. The Chairman and non-
executive Directors (including the independent non-
executive Directors) met once without the presence of
executive Directors.

Corporate Governance Report
ERELIHRS

EFaw

Bii

ExeTHETER ME8FRIBTORERE M
RERBEFTERAFRBII R EFIHEBREMHR
B ANNERER  URERFAZEETREZ
BE - EFARERSTERNEREENK
BUMERER -

AN - EFEBFEFATESR (BB LIFNTES)
BOIEL—IRLERTEFTHENEE -

REN EFSTEHEBRRBITTLRER - RETT
Exgemn ERETRAZATAMBESFTEL
NBARGHEXM - TREFRNTES (BB
TER)EBTT - RIBRTEFHENES

—Z—AFFH Annual Report 2015

27



28

Corporate Governance Report
LEERERSE

Meetings held in 2015

Details of the Directors’ attendance at Board meetings,
Board committee meetings and general meetings
(including the annual general meeting) respectively held
in 2015 are set out as below:

R-B-HFRTHER

“E-RFENRIREFEER EFSE
BLEBRRAEG (BRERBFASG)NHFE

Attended/Eligible to attend
HERS, AERHERE

Audit Nomination Remuneration

Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
EFe EBZRE REZERE FHERE B
-1 ] -1 -1 -1 PN -]
Number of Meetings Held ERETRE 7 3 1 2 3
Executive Directors BTE=R
Mr. Lai Guanglin Lai Guanglin & & 77 - 11 212 313
Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng MRERAE 7 = = = 2/3
Mr. Lai Fulin BREMEE 7 - - - 2/3
Non-executive Director EUTESR
Mr. U Kean Seng RER KA 7 3/3 = = 33
Independent BIAFRTES
Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson ~ EMAEL4 7 313 = = 313
Mr. Chen Wei Wen BREXEE i 3/3 111 212 3/3
Ms. Yang Li BRI T 717 - 1”1 2/2 313
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BOARD COMMITTEES

A number of Board committees, including audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee, have been established by the Board to
strengthen its functions and to enhance its expertise.
All committees have been formed with specific
written terms of reference which deals clearly with the
respective committees’ authorities and duties.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration
Committee comprises three members including one
executive Director, namely Mr. Lai Guanglin and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen
Wei Wen and Ms. Yang Li. It is chaired by Ms. Yang Li.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are as follows:

(@ To make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all directors
and senior management remuneration and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) To review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

() To make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management, including
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments (including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment); and

(d) To make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive directors.
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The remuneration package of executive Directors
is determined by reference to their duties and
responsibilities, experience and the prevailing market
conditions. The remuneration package of individual
executive Directors includes salary, discretionary bonus
and share based payment. Details of the Directors’ fee
and other emoluments of the Directors of the Company
are set out in Note 30 to the financial statements.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the
model that it wil review the proposals made by
the management on the remuneration of executive
Directors and senior management, and make
recommendations to the Board. The Board will have
final authority to approve the recommendations made
by the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings
during 2015, the following major matters were reviewed
and discussed in the meetings and recommended to
the Board for approval:

. To review the remuneration policy and
remuneration packages of Directors and senior
management of the Company;

. To consider the bonus arrangement of the
Directors and senior management of the
Company; and

o To review the new service contracts entered
into between the Company and non-executive
Directors.

Pursuant to B.1.5 of the CG Code, the details
remuneration of the senior management of the
Company by band for the year ended 31 December
2015 was set out in Note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements of this Annual Report.
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Nomination Committee

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises three members including one executive
Director, namely Mr. Lai Guanglin and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Wei Wen
and Ms. Yang Li. It is chaired by Mr. Lai Guanglin, the
Chairman of the Board.

In August 2013, the Company adopted the Board
Diversity Policy in accordance with the requirement
set out in the code provision of the Code. Such
policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity on
Board. With a view to achieving a sustainable and
balanced development, the Company sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and
its sustainable development. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination
Committee are as follows:

(@ To review the structure, size and composition
(board diversity has been considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skKills,
knowledge and length of service) of the Board
at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;
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(b) To identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection
of, individuals nominated for directorships.
All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board;

() To review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, and disclose the Board Diversity
Policy or its summary in the corporate
governance report of the Company including
the measurable objectives set for implementing
the Board Diversity Policy and progress made
towards achieving these measurable objectives;

(d)  To assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors; and

(e)  To make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors in particular the
chairman and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee held a meeting during
2015, the following major issues were reviewed and
discussed in the meeting:

. To review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board;

. To review the Board Diversity Policy; and
. To evaluate and make recommendation as to the
qualification and experience of the directors who

were subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the 2015 annual general meeting.
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Audit Committee

As at the date of this report, Audit Committee consists
of two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson and Mr. Chen Wei Wen,
and a non-executive Director, namely Mr. U Kean
Seng. It is chaired by Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson
who has the appropriate professional qualifications,
accounting and financial management expertise.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee
are as follows:

(@ To make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor,
and any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

(b)  To monitor integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and to review significant financial
reporting judgements contained in them;

(c) To review the Company’s financial controls, risk
management and internal control systems; and

(d) To discuss the risk management and internal
control systems with management to ensure
that management has performed its duty to have
effective systems.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during 2015
and the following major matters were reviewed and
discussed in the meetings:

. To review the annual results of 2014 and
the interim results of 2015 and making
recommendation to the Board for approval;
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. To make recommendation on the re-appointment
of the auditor;

. To review the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function and their training programme and related
budget;

. To review the risk management and internal
control systems;

. To approve the auditor’s fees for audit of 2015
financial statements; and

To discuss the audit service plan of 2015.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board has adopted the written terms of reference
on corporate governance functions in March 2012
so as to assist the Board performing corporate
governance functions. The terms of reference of the
Board in respect of corporate governance functions are
summarized as follows:

(@ To develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance;

(b) To review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management;

(c) To review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices to ensure compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements;

(d) To develop, review and monitor the code

of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and
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(e) To review the Company’s compliance with
the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules and its disclosure requirements
in Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, training and continuing professional
development of Directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of
the Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with
the Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report. In addition, the Board has approved the
adoption of the revised terms of reference of the Audit
Committee.

This corporate governance report has been reviewed
by the Board in discharge of its corporate governance
functions.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees charged by the auditor generally depends on
the scope and volume of the auditor’'s work. For the
year ended 31 December 2015, the remuneration to
the auditor of the Company in respect of audit services
was HK$1,140,000 and fees related to taxation
services and other non-audit services amount to
HK$84,500 and HK$60,000 respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment of annual and
interim reports, inside information announcements and
other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and
other regulatory requirements. The senior management
provides such explanation and information to the
Board so as to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the financial information and position of
the Company.
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The Directors acknowledge the responsibilities
for preparing the accounts of the Company. The
responsibilities of the auditor of the Company with
respect to the financial statements of the Group is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 68 to
70.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries,
consider that the Company has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate
system of internal controls within the Group and for
reviewing their effectiveness. The system of internal
controls is designed to facilitate effective and efficient
operations, to safeguard assets and to ensure
the quality of internal and external reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. It is
also designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that material misstatement or loss can be
avoided, and to manage and minimize risks of failure in
operation systems.

The Board engaged a professional consulting
firm to perform internal control review to assess
the effectiveness of the financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions of
the Company and the Group’s major subsidiaries on a
rotation basis.

Softpower International Limited 5&5EIRER2AF]

EEANBEAREARARBNEME - AR AAZHEN
SAEBARREV MR 2 BETIFENE68E70 BB
SZEEN R

HREE

EEAFHEEERER
ER RS REERSE
a2 EEDEE -

RRARAFEETD BRI
4 I B 7 R B R R 4 AR

AERET I

EXeRARAEEER —ERMD AR NEEHIFR
B UARBEEYE - REMEH AR AESZEL
MEE R E - REEE - BMRAMIIINBREZE
= AREERESTER AP MR PR o AEREE
ABEEAE (MIFBY) RELME R LREERR
FBRNIEN - WEIESREEE R LER o

EFEECRREXBRARBHARRRASEE 2
MY A BT N EREE R A% - TS - EIE - A
MR B IR E 5 ARBESIEA I ETTRHS -



At the meeting of the Audit Committee held on
17 March 2016,
reported their review work for the year ended 31
December 2015 performed in accordance with the
detailed risk-based internal control review plan which

the professional consulting firm

was approved by the Audit Committee. The Board,
through the Audit Committee, has conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
systems for the year ended 31 December 2015. The
Audit Committee members, together with the senior
management, have also reviewed, considered and
discussed all findings relating to the internal control
systems and recommendations for improvement.

The Audit Committee also reviewed and was satisfied
with the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting function.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. Cheng
Siu Kwan, who is also the Financial Controller of
the Company. Mr. Cheng is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He fulfills the requirement under Rules
3.28 and 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

The Company Secretary is responsible for providing
secretarial services to the Board and ensuring the
operation of the Company is properly complied with
Hong Kong listed companies’ regulatory requirements
as well as enhancing its corporate governance
standards.
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All Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary with a view to ensuring
that board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. Company Secretary is also
the secretary of each of Board committees. Minutes of
Board meetings and meetings of all Board committees
are kept by the Company Secretary and are available
for inspection by the Directors at all times.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Right to convene special general meeting

Pursuant to Section 74(1) of the Bermuda Companies
Act and the bye-law 62 of the Bye-Laws of the
Company, the shareholder(s) of the Company holding
at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
as at the date of the deposit carries the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company may request
the Board to convene a special general meeting. The
requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited
at the registered office of the Company and its head
office and principal place of business in Hong Kong for
the attention of Company Secretary and may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one
or more requisitionists. If the Directors do not within
twenty-one days from the date of the deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than
one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the said date.
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Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s share registrar. Other
shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to the head
office and principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong as set out in the “CORPORATE
INFORMATION” section of this Annual Report for the
attention of Company Secretary.

Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to Sections 79(1) and 79(2) of the Bermuda
Companies Act, on the requisition in writing of either (j)
any number of members of the Company representing
not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of
all the members having at the date of the requisition
a right to vote at the meeting to which the requisition
relates; or (i) not less than one hundred members, the
Company shall, at the expense of the requisitionists
unless the Company otherwise resolves:

(@ to give to members of the Company entitled to
receive notice of the next annual general meeting
notice of any resolution which may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting;

(b) to circulate to shareholders entitled to have
notice of any general meeting sent to them any
statement of not more than one thousand words
with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt
with at that meeting.
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A copy or copies of requisition signed by all
requisitionists shall be deposited, with a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses
in giving notice of the proposed resolution or circulating
any necessary statement, at the registered office of
the Company and its head office and principal place of
business in Hong Kong in the case of:

(i)  a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not
less than six weeks before the meeting; and

(i)  any other requisition, not less than one week
before the meeting.

The Company will verify the requisition and upon
confirming that the requisition is proper and in order,
the Board will proceed with the necessary procedures.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board is obliged to provide regular, effective
and fair communication with the shareholders and
the investors of the Company. Latest information is
conveyed to the Shareholders and the investors of the

Company on a timely basis.

A Shareholder Communication Policy (the “Policy”) was
adopted by the Company in March 2012. The Policy
aims to set out the provisions with the objective of
ensuring that the latest information of the Company is
conveyed to the Shareholders and investors on a timely
basis. The Company uses a range of communication
tools to ensure the Shareholders and the investors are
kept well informed of key business imperatives.
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Disclosure of Information

Information shall be communicated to Shareholders
and the investors mainly through the Company’s
financial reports (interim and annual reports), annual
general meetings and other general meetings that may
be convened, as well as by making available all the
disclosures submitted to The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) and
its corporate communications and other corporate
publications on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s
website and the Company’s website.

General Meeting

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general
meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at
meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to
attend the meetings. Shareholders’ views on matters
that affect the Company are welcome by the Board at
shareholders’ meetings. Shareholders of the Company
are notified of shareholders’ meetings through notices
and reports or circulars sent to them. Each item
of special business in the notice of the meeting is
accompanied, where appropriate, by an explanation
for the proposed resolution. A separate resolution is
proposed by the chairman of the meetings in respect
of each separate issue, including the re-election of
Directors.

The Chairman of the Board and Chairmen of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee or failing him/her, his/her duly appointed
delegate, are available at the annual general meeting
to answer questions with regard to the work of these
committees.
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Voting by Poll

Save as provided under the Listing Rules, resolutions
put to vote at the general meetings of the Company
(other than procedural matters) are taken by poll.
Procedures regarding the conduct of the poll are
explained to the shareholders at the commencement of
each general meeting, and questions from shareholders
regarding the voting procedures are answered. The poll
results are posted on the respective websites of the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the
same day of the poll.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company maintains a website (www.softpower.hk)
where information and updates on the list of Directors
and their roles and functions, constitutional documents,
terms of reference of the Board committees,
procedures for shareholders to propose a person
for election as a director, announcements, circulars
and reports, etc. released to the HKExnews’ website
(www.hkexnews.hk) and other information are
posted. Information on the Company’s website will be
updated from time to time. A dedicated email address
(ir@softpower.hk) for investor enquiry is set out in the
“Contact Us” section on the Company’s website.

Constitutional Documents

During the year, there was no significant change to the
Company’s constitutional documents.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have
pleasure in presenting their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the special
general meeting held on 13 November 2015, the name
of the Company was changed from “China Pipe Group
Limited” to “Softpower International Limited” and the
secondary name of the Company was changed from
“HEEEEEBRAR o BHEEBRAE", both
effective from 17 November 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are
set out in Note 32 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segments is set out in Note 5 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 71.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Report of the Directors
EFEHEE

ARAEF(EF)MARLZEARESERNBE_T
—hFT A=t AULFEZEERVHERE -

L5 & 3/NCEE
BERZZE-—RAF+—AT=ZB8IT2Z2REFIX
ELr@EBCERRER  KARZEMAIChina
Pipe Group Limited] #2407 [ Softpower International
Limited] RARF 2 E=EEH [PEEXEEBRA
A EMRBHBEEERAR] A FE—0F+—
A+tR4% -

EBRY

ARRZEBEBRIVERR  MAHNBRAZER
EBRIBRH B IREM 32 «

REED B2 AEBRER 2 DRI BRERM LS -
KRS
FEEBE_T-RE A=+ -ALFEIEE

ENETIEZFakaER -

ARREFE((EER ) TERRNBE_T—1F
TZA=1T—BHIEFEZRERE -

—Z—AFFH Annual Report 2015

43



44

Report of the Directors
EFEEHEE

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year
and a discussion on the Group’s future business
development, possible risks and uncertainties that the
Group may be facing are set out in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this Annual Report.

The details of financial risk management of the Group
are set out in Note 3 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is set out in
the section headed “Five-Year Financial Summary” of
this Annual Report.

The compliance with relevant laws and regulations
which have a significant impact on the Group is set out
in this “Report of Directors” and the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” of this Annual Report.

Social Responsibilities and Services and
Environmental policies

The Group is committed in promoting the sustainable
development of both the environment and the society.

We believe it is more blessed to give than to receive.
As such, we support and encourage our employees
to participate in community service activities. With the
support from the management team, our core business
company, Bun Kee (International) Limited (“Bun Kee”)
is committed to participate and support social services
activities. In this regard, Bun Kee has awarded the
Caring Company logo in recognition of our corporate
social responsibility’s participation and commitment.
We also believe in the ripple effect which those people,
whom we helped, will in turn help others who are in
need.
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In 2015, we have involved in community care and
support, including the event of “The Fan Delivery”
jointly organised by ACRA Caring Committee and
Caritas Community Centre-Ngau Tau Kok, and we
have sponsored the activity of “E & M Safety Walk
Carnival Fair 2015” jointly organized by The Hong Kong
Federation of Electrical and Mechanical Contractors
Limited and The Federation of Hong Kong Electrical &
Mechanical Industries Trade Unions.

With regards to environmental policy, we pay a great
deal of attention to promoting environmental protection.
We will integrate environmental awareness in our daily
operations including:

. Reduce electricity consumption, improve energy
efficiency, use of energy-efficient products to
replace the appliances and equipment;

. Turn off lightings, air-conditioners and electrical
appliances in offices after working hours, or
when rooms not being used, for instance, the
conference rooms;

. Using electronic means for communications
internally and with external parties;

. Reduce the need to copy and print. Use of
recycled paper, copy and print on both sides of
the paper, where appropriate; and

. Re-use of office supplies (such as single-sided
paper, paper clips, envelopes, file folders, paper
bags, plastic bags).

Relationships with key stakeholders

The Group understands and supports that employees,
customers, suppliers and business partners, investors
and shareholders are vital to our sustainable and stable
development.
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EFEEHEE

(i)

(i)

Employees

The Group is an equal opportunity employer.
Our employee handbook outlines terms and
conditions of employment, code of conduct and
employee benefits. We promote harmony and
respect in our workplace. Employees are one
of our most important assets. To that end, we
provide self-improvement and advancement
opportunities as well as a safe workplace
in order to retain high calibre employees.
The Group values the well-being and health
of our employees and therefore provides
medical insurance coverage and benefits to
our employees. In addition, we will organize
staff gathering quarterly and annual dinner, all
management will also participate to maintain
good relations with employees and promote two-
way communication. The Company will conduct
staff appraisal annually, and also provide exit
interviews for the outgoing employees. We adopt
an open policy to allow employees at any time, by
email or in person to the department managers
or Human Resources department to express their
views.

Customers

We provide high quality products to our
customers constantly as it is the best way to
retain customers and business growth. Our sales
team will visit customers regularly to keep abreast
of new opportunities and challenges. All opinions
received will be prompt handled by the relevant
team. We grow up together with most of our
customers in past years and we have established
solid and long-term relationships with them. We
also have built up a trust and good reputation
among our customers over the years.
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(iii)

(iv)

Suppliers and business partners

For our suppliers and business partners, we strive
to maintain a stable and long-term relationship
with them. The Group’s procurement is based
on our stringent suppliers’ selection criteria. To
ensure the highest quality of products, the Group
has requested the suppliers to provide product
certification. In addition, we engaged highly
reputable independent laboratories for quality
testing to ensure that the products comply with
local and international standards. Our sales team
and procurement team will have regular visit to
our suppliers’ factories for inspection. In order
to allow our customers to have direct feedback
channel to the suppliers, we will also organize
some factory tours to the customers. This can let
them better understanding of the production flow
and products quality affirmation in order to win
the utmost confidence of customers.

Investors and shareholders

For the investors and shareholders, we maintain
a high level of transparency and communicate
with them through meetings, announcements
and circulars. The Company maintains a website,
the information will be updated from time to time.
In addition, a dedicated email address is set out
in the “Contact Us” section of the Company’s
website for investor and general public inquiry.

(iii)

(iv)
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EFEEHEE

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the distributable reserves of the Company
as at 31 December 2015 are set out in Note 29 to the
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in properties, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 13 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the
Company are set out in Note 21 to the financial
statements.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the special
general meeting held on 16 January 2015, every
ten shares of the Company’s issued and unissued
shares with par value of HK$0.002 per share have
been consolidated into one share with par value of
HK$0.02 with effect from 19 January 2015 (the “Share
Consolidation”).

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2015 are set out in Note 23 to the financial
statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares
during the year. Neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the
Company’s shares during the year.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the Bermuda Companies
Act, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2015 are set out in Note 32 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lai Guanglin (Chairman)
Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lai Fulin

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. U Kean Seng

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson
Mr. Chen Wei Wen
Ms. Yang Li

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws of the
Company, Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng, Mr. Chen Wei Wen
and Ms. Yang Li will retire from office by rotation and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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EFEEHEE

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each independent
non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his/
her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and the Company considers that all of them are
independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior
management are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company has entered into any service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which
is not terminable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors and their respective associates
has an interest in any business which competes or
may compete with the business in which the Group
engaged.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(P) Current and deferred income tax
(cont’d)

(i)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised
using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using
tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by
the statement of financial position
date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BERERME

2.

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(9)

Current and deferred income tax
(cont’d)

(i)

(i)

Deferred income tax (cont’d)
Outside basis differences
Deferred income tax liabilities are
provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments
in subsidiaries except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Generally
the Group is unable to control the
reversal of the temporary difference
for associates.

Deferred income tax assets are
recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments
in subsidiaries only to the extent
that it is probable the temporary
difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary
difference can be utilised.

Offsetting
Deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current
tax liabilites and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to
settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(a)

()

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the
Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation, and the
amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present
value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Revenue and income recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable,
and represents amounts
goods and services supplied, stated net

receivable for
of discounts, returns and value added
taxes. The Group recognises revenue
when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity; and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical
results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the
specifics of each arrangement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

U]

(s)

Revenue and income recognition (cont’d)

(i) Sale of goods are recognised when
goods are delivered to customers, the
customer has accepted the products
and collectibility of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

(i) Interest income is recognised on
a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in
the Group’s and the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or where

appropriate.

directors,

3. Financial risk management

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety
of financial risks: market risk (including
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk),
credit and counterparty risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s financial risk management
focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance by actively managing debt
level and cash flow in order to maintain a
strong financial position and minimising
refinancing and liquidity risks by attaining
healthy debt repayment capacity,
appropriate maturity profile and availability
of banking facilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(@  Market risk

0

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates principally
in Hong Kong and in Macau
and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to the
United States dollars (“USD”),
Macau pataca (“MOP”) and
Renminbi (“RMB”). Foreign
exchange risk mainly arises
from future commercial
transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities, which are
denominated in a currency that
is not the functional currency
of the group entities. In order
to mitigate the foreign currency
risk, the Group has been closely
monitoring its foreign currency
exposure and requirements and
will arrange for any hedging
facilities if necessary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

3.

Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1

Financial risk factors (cont’d)
Market risk (cont’d)

@

0

Foreign exchange risk (cont’d)
As HKD is pegged against
USD and MOP, the Group is
exposed to limited exchange
rate fluctuation. As a result, the
exchange rate risk exposure in
respect of USD and MOP are
not significant. While for RMB,
the exchange rate fluctuation
is relatively volatile. At 31
December 2015, if RMB had
strengthened/weakened by
5% (2014: 5%) against HKD
with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit would
have been HK$631,000 higher/
lower (2014: post-tax profit of
HK$1,365,000 higher/lower)
respectively mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of RMB-
denominated financial assets
and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(@  Market risk (cont’d)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and
operating cash flows are
substantially independent of
changes in market interest
rates and the Group has no
significant interest-bearing
assets except for the bank
balances and deposits, details
of which have been disclosed in
Notes 19 and 20. The Group’s
exposure to changes in interest
rates is also attributable to its
borrowings, details of which
have been disclosed in Note
23. Borrowings carry at floating
rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest-rate risk
whereas those carry at fixed
rates expose the Group to
fair value interest-rate risk.
As at 31 December 2015,
approximately 29% (2014: 34%)
of the Group’s borrowings were
carried at floating rates and
expose the Group to cash flow
interest-rate risk. The Group
has not used any interest rate
swaps to hedge its exposure
against cash flow interest-rate
risks.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BERERME

3.

Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1

Financial risk factors (cont’d)

@

(b)

Market risk (cont’d)
(i) Interest rate risk (cont’d)
As at 31 December 2015, if
interest rate has increased/
decreased by 25 basis points
with all other variables held
constant, profit for the vyear
ended 31 December 2015
would have been HK$44,000
(2014: HK$54,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of
increase/decrease in interest

expense on borrowings.

Credit and counterparty risk

Credit risk mainly arises from
bank deposits, trade and other
receivables, and other deposits. The
carrying amounts of these balances
substantially represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit and
counterparty risk in relation to
financial assets.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2015,
all the bank deposits are deposited
in high quality financial institutions
without significant credit risk. The
credit risk on bank deposits is limited
because over 63% of the Group’s
bank balances are placed with
subsidiaries of state-owned banks
and others are placed with reputable
Management
does not expect any loss from non-

financial institutions.

performance of these banks.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)

(b)

(©

Credit and counterparty risk (cont’d)
In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue
trade and other receivables. In
addition, the Group reviews regularly
the recoverable amount of each
individual trade and other receivables
to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. Rental deposits made to
landlords are also considered to be of
low risk. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced. The Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk,
with exposure spread over a number
of counterparties and customers.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management
includes maintaining sufficient cash
and availability of funding from an
adequate amount of committed credit
facilities.
rolling forecast of the Group’s liquidity
reserves which comprises undrawn

Management maintains

banking facilities and cash and cash
equivalents, on the basis of expected
cash flows.
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IRBE S REBIERA > BREENRK
REBERBERRENREEEDDH
BRRER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBS HRRME

3. Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(c)  Liquidity risk (cont’d)

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the date of
financial reporting to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

At 31 December 2015 R=EB-R1%£+-RA=+-H

Trade and other payables ~ ZHREMERFIE
Borrowings B8
Interest payment EEZFIERN

on borrowings

At 31 December 2014 R=E-WF+-A=1—H

Trade and other payables 25K EAENFE
Borrowings &8
Interest payment EEZFIERN

on borrowings

Softpower International Limited 5&5EIRERAF]

3.

MImEEE (1))

3.1 HHEMEE (&)

c) TEEZRERE(E)
TRIZARFHHREAESLMEEHEH
THESASENTEEES B TE
WEHEES - RIEFTBBENBERE
RNV ©

Less than Between 1 Between 2

1 year and 2 years and5years  Over 5 years
—ElR —-EEmE AEERE RAEYE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TER TER
62,947 - - -
73,043 - - -
490 - - -
69,470 - - -
75,953 - - -
516 - - -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BERRME

3. Financial risk management (cont’d) 3. MERREHEE)

3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 EXEKER

The Group’s objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or
sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the
Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total
borrowings divided by total equity.

The Group’s strategy was to maintain a
solid capital base to support the operations
and development of its business in the long
term. Given its existing principal business,
management considers a gearing ratio
as measured by total borrowings to total
equity of not more than 50% as solid and
reasonable. The table below analyses the
Group’s capital structure at 31 December
2014 and 2015 as follows:

AEEEREANBNAREAEEER
B AR MR ®I /A H A A 25
HEATRENE  URERREFNER
BB ARE B AR o

REFIAEEARE > AEEAAER
BRERIRMNEBE - RARFREREER - %17
iRk E B ER D ET -

MEMRZE—%  AEENEEABLX
ERERERNESE - BERBL RRE
BT A KR -

REEZRIEEHSBENESER - 1A
RETRHASENEBEEREE - ER
RETEEL TEEBERBEREERE
HERBRRTEZEEABLERER
50% A T BEBRERAE - TRAEAEKE
RZE-—NMFER=—FT—RAF+=A=+—
HEARZEE 2 DT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

3.

Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.2

3.3

Capital risk management (cont’d)

Total borrowings wEs
Total equity farEns
Gearing ratio BEARBHLE

Note:

Decrease in gearing ratio during the year is a
result of the decrease in total borrowings and the
increase in total equity.

Fair value estimation

The carrying value of trade and other
receivables, bank balances and deposits,
trade and other payables and borrowings
are a reasonable approximation of their fair
values. The fair value of financial liabilities
for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that
is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.

Softpower International Limited 5&HEIFRER2AF]

3.

MIGmEEE (1))

32 EBEFXmmEE(E)

3.3

2015 2014
—Z—hEF —T g
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T FHT
73,043 75,953
385,126 351,077
19% 22%

BT -

BEABLROHDRANBERRD RaE
aHYIE N ©

DNABEEMGE

B 5 REMBKGR - RITESHRFR
B hEMENRERMER ZREE SRR
FZRREZHEE - REEMS - @A
BZAREERRASERNEEHTAL
BIOOMBHEERRANRASREMAM
faE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.3 Fair value estimation (cont’d)

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial instruments carried at fair value as
at 31 December 2015 by level of the inputs
to valuation techniques used to measure
fair value. Such inputs are categorised into
three levels within a fair value hierarchy as
follows:

- quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or
liabilities (level 1)

- inputs other than quoted prices
1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices)
(level 2)

included within level

- inputs for the asset and liability that
are not based on observable market
data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3)

Financial assets SREE
— Investment funds —KRERES

There were no transfers between levels 1
and 2 during the year.

i & M55 R M

3. MERREEGR)

3.3

AREEMET (F)
TREBBENE AR BENGERMS AR
ERINBANER  S2MAKER=-Z
—HF+- A=+t BRAAEBEAERD
TRITHE GELHAZBRARBEERS
HAWMT=E :

- MNHRAEEXABGEAEMSZRE
(REHE)(F—E)

- BIE-ERERBEIHREN ZBE
RABZABRELAEMBA - TRE
& (BER) L& (ANRAER) (F
=)

-  EERABELIFKEAIBERMSHIE
ZBA (R BEBA) (F=F)

Fair value
as at
Fair value 31 December
Hierarchy 2015
R-E—1F
+=BA=+—H
R EBEER BARRE
HK$°000
TERT

Level 2
E_4 1,672

FNFE1HEE 2 [E 2 FIWHEeEE o
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Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.3 Fair value estimation (cont’d)

The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates. It includes quoted
market price or dealer quotes for similar
instruments. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities of the Group are
discussed below.

(@) Provision for impairment of trade and

other receivables

The policy for provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables of the Group
is based on the evaluation of collectability
and on management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each counterparty. If the financial
conditions of the counterparties were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of
their ability to make payments, additional
allowances may be required.

Softpower International Limited 5&HEIFRER2AF]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

MIGmEEE (1))

3.3 AREEME (&)
WENERTISEE 2RI E (WHIMT
£TH) ERrENERGEEREERE -
ZEMEAHEREFN AR ATERTISIE
ZHE  UEREROEKBEERBEMG
BEENUS R T ANTISREKCHER
B-M—2RMIANAABMEZAEE
ARBASES B - MZemIARA
FE

FRE w5t {h &t R PR

ApARBAEERIEMRR(BREAREMNF
e 2 B A ET) NI FHE IR LR fEE R #
B - ATREEARRERAEHREERBEZ
FREEAFHEARRBZ M RREZHH °

(@ ESZRHEtEWREAZBERE

AEEE S N E A YR Z BERFBIK
SRUA AT W [B] 14 5 4 % B 3R FE 4 AR L o
AR EFRUR B &R ERENREE
TREHE  BEESRXZHZAFEE
FBEWGRARER » WX 5 77 M 5 5iR 00 B 8
B - HISS R RBE S - BIZRFHERINE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (cont’d)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Provision for impairment of inventories
The management of the Group reviews
the marketability of inventory items at
the end of each reporting period, and
makes allowance for obsolete and slow-
moving
are no longer suitable for sale. The
management estimates the net realisable

inventory items identified that

value for inventories based primarily on the
latest invoice prices and current market
conditions. The Group -carries out an
inventory review on a product-by-product
basis at the end of each reporting period
and makes provision for obsolete items.

Provision for bonus and customer
claims

Management reviews the provision for
bonus and customer claims at the end
of each reporting period to determine
whether the provision is adequate based
on historical experience and most reliable
estimates. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for bonus and
customer claims.

Employee benefits — share based
payments

The determination of the fair value of the
share options granted requires estimates
in determining the expected volatility of
the share price, the dividends expected
on the shares, the risk-free interest rate
for the life of the option and the number of
share options that are expected to become
exercisable as stated in Note 21(b). Where
the outcome of the number of options that
are exercisable is different, such difference
will impact the consolidated income
statement in the subsequent remaining
vesting period of the relevant share options.

i & M55 R M

4. FREBEEHEET R FIER ()

(b)

()

(d)

FERERE

AEEEEEREERPRERFERR
ZHEMBRUHBERSTHBESHEZB
BRFHEEFmETHEE  EEEXIER
BRI ZEZERRBAMRAGETFE

BREMENTHFERZ  LTHBRMEED
Y

AREFEERE

EREN S 2 RRE R RE SR
B BB ER R RN EEAT RS
ETRH - RRTIEALREP M
B - BEE AL o

BERF - LURGOBERNK

BERLBRENAAEAMGRERS
HRBIRE - BEFBRDIRMTORE - B
RETT {32 B O S LB M) 2 Ko FRET A 1T REAY
BREH A TRERIINKE21(b) » WER
ATITENBREZEEMRE X8
£ 7 8 B AU L 1R R SR A0 57 I8 A 0 S i
BNERBAFE
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Segment information

The Group determines its operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the chief
operating decision-maker that are used to make
strategic decisions. The chief operating decision-
maker has been identified as the executive
directors of the Company. The chief operating
decision-maker assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company.

During the year, the Group has only one
reportable segment, which is trading of pipes
and fittings. Trading of pipes and fittings includes
wholesale, retail and logistics operations
substantially in Hong Kong and Macau.

Geographical information

The Group is domiciled in Hong Kong. The
Group’s revenue from external customers by
geographical location are detailed below:

Hong Kong BB
Macau RPT

Softpower International Limited 5&HEIFRER2AF]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

SBEH

REEIREELCERRENEMWRE AL RR
HREETHEED S - BFELERRERRE
RARBIZHITES - EREERREREAR
AIRAEIS A ABIERFIAGGTZ 2 BN SR -

RERN AEEREREEEREGHES —HA
TEFRNHH  c BEEREHEZIBIEETEEEH
FRP 2z #tE - TERYIREL ©

1 B8 25 ZR &
AREBBRNEE - NEERME D EER BN
BEFEWALT

Revenue

A

For the year ended
31st December

B8EF+_-_A=1+—HLFE

2015 2014
—Z—hEF —T g
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T FHT
511,184 468,503
100,350 85,342
611,534 553,845




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i & M55 R M

Segment information (cont’d) 5. HEEHEGE)
Geographical information (cont’d) hESBER (&)
The Group’s non-current assets by geographical AREFZE D IOIEREEEMT :

location are detailed below:

2015 2014
- Sk T —T e
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHIT
Hong Kong BB 10,055 8,484
Mainland China R 9 3 2,199 2,646
12,254 11,130
Other losses, net 6. EHEI&REE
2015 2014
—Z—-hEF —T e
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FHIT
Net exchange loss b 5 s tEF ER (2,101) (1,201)
Net (loss)/gain on disposal HEWZE - BE RE&EZ
of property, plant and (E518), W58
equipment (127) 87
Loss on financial assets at RAnEBEFABRZ
fair value through profit or loss ERNEEBE (94) -
Dividend income from financial BEARBEFABRZ
assets at fair value through TREEZREWA
profit or loss 49 -
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary & — B A AR Es1E
(Note 27(b)) (FF5E27(b)) - (871)
Others HAh 366 124
(1,907) (1,861)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B H R

7. Expenses by nature

Operating profit is arrived at after charging:

Cost of inventories sold (Note 16)
Auditor’s remuneration:

— Audit services

— Non-audit servies
Depreciation of property, plant

and equipment (Note 13)

Employee benefit expenses (Note 8)
Operating lease payments (Note 13)

Provision for impairment of trade
and other receivables, net

Provision for impairment of
inventories, net

Other expenses

Representing:
Cost of sales
Selling and distribution costs

7. BAXHMHE

BHEZFERA (i 16)
ZEENN S -
— B RTE
— IEEALIRT
M - BEREETE
(H97E13)
B ITEFMA% (Fizxs)
e EBA (fiE13)
B 5 K& H h FE MR8
VERER b
FEREREFE

HAFIS

&
HEMA
HE R SHRAR

General and administrative expenses — /& M 1TIE F

Softpower International Limited 5&HEIFRER2AF]

MR TIIRBRESR ¢

2015 2014
—E—hEF —EF—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FHBT
435,239 406,494
1,192 1,108
145 131
2,178 1,409
68,991 63,539
19,404 17,687
860 43
1,316 1,078
40,673 34,085
569,998 525,574
445,801 416,116
23,226 19,032
100,971 90,426
569,998 525,574




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i & M55 R M

Employee benefit expenses 8. [ERRFIMX
2015 2014
—E—LF N
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#xT FHBT
Wages and salaries TENES 66,823 61,405
Pension costs — defined RIRE KA — ERBHEFETE
contribution plans 2,048 1,794
Share based payment (Note 21(b)) LA AERE 2 43k (M 5T 21(b)) 120 340
68,991 63,539
(a) Five highest paid individuals (@ AENBRESHFAL
The five individuals whose emoluments REARN AEBRURSHFATEE= A
were the highest in the Group for the year ZE—MNF: ZA)ES HFESERH

include three (2014: three) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis
shown in Note 30. The emoluments paid to
the remaining two (2014: two) individuals
were as follows:

Salaries and other short-term 74 & Bt 55 HA(E B 128 5|

employee benefits
Discretionary bonus EIEIEAL
Pension costs — defined

contribution plans

Share based payment

BASRAN - ERHERETE

VAR AR 7R ERE RO 3R

A0 DRI - XN FEB_M(=F
—PEE ) AL ZBE T

2015 2014

k- -2k 8- —E—p4
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T FHBT
2,868 2,986

570 788

32 15

38 92

3,508 3,881
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

8. Employee benefit expenses (cont’d) 8. ERWFIFMXZ ()

(@) Five highest paid individuals (cont’d) (@ EfuESFAL(E)
The emoluments of the two (2014: two) ZR(ZEUFE R ) BReg AT ZH
individuals fell within the following bands: BN F T 5 &E -
2015 2014
—Z-1F —TF
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /%7 — 2,000,000 /& 7T 2 1
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 77T — 2,500,000 7 7T - 1
(b) Senior management remuneration by b) SREBEAEHFMzEHE

band
The remuneration of senior management fell
within the following bands:

ARREEABSNZHMNF T HHE

2015 2014
—E-1%F —T—F
Nil - HK$1,000,000 4 —1,000,000,87C -
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 /&7t — 1,500,000 /& 7T 3
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7T —2,000,000 % 7T 2
5 5
9. Finance costs, net 9. MEBRASEH
2015 2014
—E—-AFE —ET—mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Bank interest income RITHEUA (1,282) (1,267)
Interest expense on bank borrowings R1TEE 2 | &5 1,326 1,586
44 319

Softpower International Limited 5&HEIFRER2AF]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BERRME

10. Tax expense

Current taxation:
Hong Kong profits tax
Overseas tax
Over-provision in prior years

Total current tax
Deferred taxation (Note 24):
Origination and reversal of
temporary differences

Tax expense

10. RIEZH
2015 2014
—Z=—hF —T N4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiET FH&TT
BIEARR I :
EEFTSH 5,147 3,939
B INEIR 550 417
LARTFE Z 1 (16) (109)
BNHATS IR A2 %8 5,681 4,247
IEFEFIA (FizE24)
iy 22 RE 2 FEHE K S
(119) 115
HEL 5,562 4,362

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the
rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profit for the year. Taxation on
overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the

rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in

which the Group operates.

BENEHIAF ARG ERFE IR X 16.5%
—T M5 : 16.5%) FH1R © BINRETDRIEF
A AT ERTENRARBRLEXBER 2T

TR -
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10. Tax expense (cont’d)

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would

10. MIAZH (M)

arise using the Hong Kong profits tax rate as

follows:

Profit before income tax

Tax calculated at tax rate of
16.5% (2014: 16.5%)

Effect of different tax rates in other
jurisdictions

Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax loss

Unrecognised tax losses

Tax effect of income not subject to
taxation

Tax effect of expenses not
deductible for taxation purposes

Over-provision in prior years

Tax expense

Softpower International Limited 5&5EIRER2AF]

Tt A A1)

1216.5% (ZZ—4F : 16.5%)
MEE 218

HAh FAM T MR E
T 2 g2

£ A SERTARTER 2 IR EE

RERTIAE IR
BARN WA AT E

TAHIB X Z RIRF &

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

AEBERBAGHN 2 HAXHEBRERBES
MSHEMETE 2 Eimi B =T

2015 2014
—Z—hEF —T g
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T FHT
39,585 26,091
6,531 4,305
(534) (376)
(1,275) (401)
589 701
(214) (118)
481 360
(16) (109)
5,562 4,362




11.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Earnings per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings
per share is based on the profit for the year

& M55 R

11. SREH

TRINTFEGREREN M EERF TIRIESF
MR A AR & B BT Bz T

attributable to equity holders and weighted HREE (EEE T ATEE) -
average number of shares with adjustments
where applicable as follows:
2015 2014
—Z—-AhF —E—mE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Profit attributable to equity holders of FFE&EEARRF] Z A Q7
the Company for the purpose of MR B AEAE R
basic earnings per share 34,023 21,729
Thousand Thousand
Number of shares 370 A= | TFE T
Weighted average number of STESRERZT
ordinary shares for the purpose AR < IR ISR
of basic earnings per share 1,333,270 1,333,270

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by
adjusting the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of dilutive potential ordinary shares
arising from the Company’s share options.
Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2015 equal basic earnings
per share as the exercise of the outstanding
share options would be anti-dilutive.

The weighted average number of ordinary
shares and basic earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2014 has been adjusted
retrospectively to reflect the impact of share
consolidation effected on 19 January 2015 (Note
21).

AAEESREEANE - B BITERBZ INE
¥i’]Hx§M’Eﬁuﬂ%§ LAfE“"ﬁﬁﬁH%&?ﬁxaﬁZﬂE
TTREBREERYER - BE T —UFER—
—hF+_-H :+—EJJ:EWI¢E ’ Ifﬂiﬂiﬁ
EEREARBEFE  AUMEFE 2 SHH#
BRNGEMERERRF -

BE_ZT-NF+-_A=t+—HIFEZRRN
INHEFIGRR B R GIR AN E BRI KR
RZZE-—AF—ATNBEBZROEHZTE
(fFzE21) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

12. Dividend 12. BRR
At the Board meeting held on 30 March 2016, R-ZE—ARFE=ZA=+HEBTHNESTESZ L
the Board did not recommend the payment of a SR e TR R E T hE+-A=1+—
final dividend for the year ended 31 December HIEFEZRBRE (ZE—NF : &) -

2015 (2014: Nil).

13. Property, plant and equipment 13. ¥ - BERRE
Plant, Office furniture,
machinery ~ Leasehold fixtures and Officc  Computer
and equipment - improvements fittings ~ equipment  equipment Motor vehicles Total
HE #3 BOZRE

RBR HAWREE RERGR @ XBRE  REGR RE #E
HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000

TER TR TER TER TRT TR TR

Cost BE

At 1 January 2015 W=E-1%-A-A 4,359 10,048 o7 20 8,622 4,954 2,120
Exchange differences ERER - - () - ) (20 (26)
Additons HE 9% 97 - a 146 2,690 3913
Disposals ik (885) (667) (31) 20) (4,523) (802) (6934

At 31 December 2015 NZE-RETZA=1-R 3,567 10,338 875 n 4444 6,822 2%,073

Accumulated depreciation  REHE

At1 January 2015 N-F-1E-A-A 3,725 9,167 860 2 1947 3,104 24,823
Exchange diferences Ei = - - “ - ) (13 (19)
Charge for the year REESE 39 340 k) 4 20 1,143 2,178
Disposals & (883) (535) (37 (20) (4529 (531) (6,529)

At 31 December 2015 W_F-RF+-A=1-A 3211 8972 851 4 3713 3,703 20,454

Net book value B

At 31 December 2015 W_E-RF+-A=1-A 356 1,366 2% 28 7 3119 5,619
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BERRME

13. Property, plant and equipment

13. ¥% - BB Bax s (i)

(cont’d)
Plant, Office furniture,
machinery Leasehold ~ fixtures and Office Computer
and equipment  improvements ftings ~ equipment equipment  Motor vehicles Total
fiz e BOZHM
Lt MEMERE  RERRE  JBR Bl ik g
HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS" 000
TR TR T TR ThRL ThR TR

Cost R

At 1 January 2014 N-5-MmE-A-A 8,614 11,145 914 101 8,803 3,967 33,544
Exchange differences EXEE (106) 43 Q2 @? 0 20) (174)
Additions hE 543 i 5 - 43 1432 2,740
Disposals i (642 (149 - - - - (190
Disposal o a subsidiary HE-FHERT

(Note 27(o) (Wt 27n) (4,050) (1623 - (19 ®) (425 (6,200

At 31 December 2014 R-E-ME+-A=1-H 4,359 10,048 o7 2 8,822 4954 29,120

Accumulated depreciation &

At1 January 2014 N-5-MmE-A-A 6,293 9,849 830 16 7,687 3,021 21,162
Exchange differences EiEE (62) (20) Q) 1) - (10) (95
Charge for the year FEERE 478 283 R 2 267 U7 1,409
Disposls ik (639) (148) - - - - (781)
Disposal of a Subsidary ik EG ()

(Note 27(b) (2,345 (197) - (1) U (260) (3,466

At 31 December 2014 R-E-ME+-A=1-H 3725 9,167 860 2 7947 3,104 2823

Net book value RESE

At 31 December 2014 R-E-MET-A=1-H 634 881 57 - 875 1,850 4,297

Lease rentals amounting to HK$19,224,000
(2014: HK$17,502,000) and HK$180,000 (2014:
HK$185,000) relating to the lease of property and

motor vehicles respectively are included in the
consolidated income statement (Note 7).

HYyEMIEHEEENEERE D B A
19,224,000 7t (—Z—PH4F : 17,502,000 7T)
12180,00078 7T ( —Z—PU4 : 185,000/87T) * I

BREEGFARERT (HFET) -
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e M B H R

14. Subsidiaries

Details of principal subsidiaries which, in the

Directors’ opinion, materially affect
and/or net assets of the Group

14. B AT

BEERRBAEEZEER AN -_E—0F

the results T AT RAZEFEERBKEATE 2 EEN
as at 31 BARZFEBHRMIES2 -
December 2015, are set out in Note 32.

15. Financial instruments by category 15. RENESHEMT A
2015 2014
—E-RF —E-mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Loans and receivables ERER B FET BT
Assets as per consolidated e BRI REE
statement of financial position
Trade receivables, deposits B RUGRIAE - He &k
and other receivables H fib e Iz IE 128,366 137,925
Financial assets at fire value BARBEFABRZCRIEE
through profit or loss (Note 18) (FfE18) 1,672 -
Pledged bank deposits (Note 19) ##RER7T1EK (BizE19) 61,000 68,699
Cash and bank balances 5 & MIRTT 45 (5 20)
(Note 20) 154,360 121,677
Total Fik 345,398 328,301
2015 2014
—E-RF —T—E
HK$’000 HK$’000
Other financial liabilities HthMB AR THERT FHT
Liabilities as per consolidated FEVBRRAKRARAR
statement of financial position
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAMEFRIE 62,947 69,470
Borrowings (Note 23) B8 (fiE23) 73,043 75,953
Total k] 135,990 145,423
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16.

17.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Inventories

16.

i & M55 R M

Merchandises

At 31 December 2015,

i

the provision for

impairment of inventories amounted to

approximately HK$21,119,000

HK$20,093,000).

(2014:

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses
and included in cost of sales amounted to
HK$435,239,000 (2014:HK$406,494,000) (Note

T8
2015 2014
—Z=—hF — P4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiET FHBT
164,114 143,474
150:,- AE+-A=1+—H  FEREREED
#£21,119,0007% 7t (== — U4 : 20,093,000 7%
JT) °

RS HAIIAFEKRAR T 2 FEKANZE

435,239,000/ 7T (==&
7T) (FtsE7) °

— P4

406,494,000 /5

7).
Trade and other receivables 17. B R EMEWKTRIA
2015 2014
ZE—-51F —H4E
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T FBT
Trade receivables B S REWRIA 114,765 125,025
Less: provision for impairment B RERE (1,177) (819)
Trade receivables — net Z 5 eI IA — 113,588 124,206
Prepayments TR 16,203 29,477
Consideration receivable from & —RH B A R

disposal of a subsidiary B FE WK (BT 5E 27(b)

(Note 27 (b)) - 4,615
Loan to an employee BERTF—ET 1,542 =
Loan to a third party BERT—RE=H 4,745 =
Other receivables, deposits and H At R FRIE

other assets e MEMmERE 3,868 4,559
Rental deposits HeEHe 4,623 4,545

30,981 43,196

144,569 167,402

Less: non-current portion B IEm BN E D (6,635) (6,833)
137,934 160,569
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17. Trade and other receivables (cont’d)

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, other
receivables and rental deposits approximate their
fair values.

The loan to an employee is unsecured, interest-
free and repayable within one year.

The loan to a third party is secured by certain
assets of the third party, bearing interest at
commercial rate and repayable within one year.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade
and other receivables are denominated in the
following currencies:

Hong Kong dollars BT
RMB AR
USsD =TT
MOP RFTHE
Others HAb

The Group generally grants credit period of 60-
120 days to its customers for its trading of pipes
and fittings operation. The ageing analysis of the
trade receivables based on the due date is as
follows:

Softpower International Limited 5&HEIFRER2AF]

17.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

B RAERRIE ()

BHRWHA - R FAREER S 2R
CRERFAABERS -

ERTUEBTUEER REL—FREER -

ERXRTREZNIHZBE=ZITNEEEL

1 SEEEERAER—ENEE -

AEEEZREMREFIAZ RESRIATIIE

WHHE

2015 2014
“Z—1F —T-MmF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fi&x TAET
116,963 136,336
16,408 6,731
6,794 15,376
4,404 7,472

- 1,487

144,569 167,402

AEE-RETEENEHBESIEBREPZEE
HIZ60£120K - B HRUGIZREIH A Z Rk D

Mo -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BERRME

17. BHRHEMERIA (&)

17. Trade and other receivables (cont’d)

2015 2014

—E—AF —Z O

HK$’000 HK$’'000

TH#T FHIT

Within credit period EEENRN 81,406 87,629
1 to 30 days 1RXE30K 21,615 23,631
31 to 60 days 31 AE 60X 5,753 6,828
61 to 90 days 61 KXZE 90K 1,394 3,153
91 to 120 days 91 XE 120K 297 256
Over 120 days B 120 K 4,300 3,528
114,765 125,025

Trade receivables that are current or past
due less than four months are not considered
impaired. As of 31 December 2015, trade
receivables of HK$32,182,000 (2014:
HK$36,577,000) were past due but not
considered to be impaired. These relate to a
number of independent customers for whom
there is no recent history of default. The ageing
analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

1 to 30 days 1 RE30K
31 to 60 days 31 RE60K
61 to 90 days 61 A% 90K
91 to 120 days 91 XE 120K
Over 120 days BB 120 K

s e A @A A T2 B SR KIETEE
BERE -B#E-_FT—AF+-_A=1+—8"
Z 5 fE Uk 3 1832,182,000/8 T ( = F — PO 4F ¢
36,577,000/ 7T ) B @ BB R R ARE ° %5
FIEE S S HE NGB BIRFER -
ZEE P RIRGIEZ REROTWAT ¢

2015 2014
—E—-hF —T U
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET
21,615 23,631
5,753 6,828
1,394 3,153

297 256

3,123 2,709
32,182 36,577
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17. Trade and other receivables (cont’d)

As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables
of HK$1,177,000 (2014: HK$819,000) were
impaired and provided for. The individually
impaired receivables mainly relate to customers
which have significant delay in repayment or are
in unexpected difficult financial situations. These
receivables are past due more than 120 days.

Movements on the provision for impairment of
trade receivables are as follows:

At 1 January m—H—H
Provision for impairment B

Receivables written off
during the year as uncollectible

At 31 December

The addition and release of provision for impaired
receivables have been included in general and
administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement. Amounts charged to the
provision account are generally written off when
there is no expectation of recovering additional
cash.

As at 31 December 2015, other receivables
of HK$502,000 (2014: Nil) were impaired and
provided for. The individually impaired receivables
have significant delay in repayment. These
receivables are past due more than 120 days.

Save as above, the other classes within trade and
other receivables do not contain impaired assets.

Softpower International Limited 5&HEIFRER2AF]

17.

F Y FE AR IR 2R BB W 1 T 5

R+=—A=+—8

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

B RAERRIE ()

W_ZE—hFE+-A=+—08 E5rkzE
1,177,000 7T (== —PH4 : 819,000/87T) EE
BEEE o AR B RERYGRIEE ZHE KNEE
BRARNEALEBERNE 2 TFER - 25 R
SRIE B B E 120 K ©

B HRUGRZ BIEREZEIT

2015 2014
—E—hEF —EF—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TH#T FHBT
819 1,363

358 43

- (587)

1,177 819

SRR IR FE MR R 2 BT T AR S
W RAZ —REITBER - REERS RN
SE—RRAR TS WD ERINR S FHEH o

W-ZE—hAFE+-_A=+—8 HipEkzE
HK$502,000 (== — 04 : &) E{ERERE -
ERERERKFERSE KIERERE] - %5
FEWCRRIE 8 B A 120 K ©

B EsIASN - 5 K Bt FE MR IR O EL A 4R 513
BEFDREEE °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17. Trade and other receivables (cont’d)

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the fair value of each class of
receivables mentioned above. Save as disclosed
above, the Group does not hold any collateral as
security.

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

k>
>

Investment funds REES
at fair value — unlisted

Pledged bank deposits

As at 31 December 2015, bank deposits
of HK$61,000,000 (2014: HK$48,000,000)
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
bank deposits of Nil (2014: HK$20,699,000)
denominated in Renminbi were pledged as
collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (Note
23).

The effective interest rate on pledged bank
deposits was 0.5% (2014: 1.45%) per annum
and these deposits are matured within 8 to 195
days (2014: 9 to 89 days).

L\

BE-JFLM

i & M55 R M

B RAERRIE ()

RS Bz RRERERR A LS B EKFKIA
ZRffE - B EXFIRESN - AEEYERSAE
(Al 3 am R o

18. HARREMARRZEMEE

2015 2014
—2-1F —E-mF
HK$’000 HK$°000
T TAT
1,672 -

19. BEHEBITER

RZZE—AF+=-A=+—H 61,000,000 7T
— T[4 : 48,000,000;8 7T ) B TTAHE M
(=Z—DY4F : 20,699,000/57T) AAREEZ
RITHEARE TAER - (ERAEBIRITEERE
ZPER (MisE23) -

BEEFRITERZERNEAFE05% (=
—PU4F : 1.45%) @ WWEFRZEHENTF8RE
195K (—Z—PU4F : 9RE8IK) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

20. e RBITHRER

20. Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances W& RIRTTERS (TRIERITES)

(excluding bank overdrafts)

Maximum exposure to credit risk ARSI ERREERR

2015 2014
—2-1F —E-mF
HK$’000 HK$°000
F#x TAT
154,360 121,677
154,215 121,455

Cash and cash equivalents included the following

for the purposes of the statement of cash flows: BE :

RIREMERME R MRSFEVERETI

2015 2014

—E—LF —EF—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FiET FH&TT

Cash and bank balances He MIRTTAE R 154,360 121,677
Bank overdrafts (Note 23) RITIE R (MiEE 23) (1,164) -
Cash and cash equivalents Be MRESEEY 153,196 121,677

The carrying amounts of the Group and the
Company’s cash and bank balances are
denominated in the following currencies:

IATEEEHE

REBRARRZRE RIRITHERZ RA SRR

2015 2014

—E—hF —E—PO4F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FH&TT

Hong Kong dollars BIT 135,586 98,572
RMB AREE 11,903 19,784
uUsD ETT 3,921 94
Others Hih 2,950 3,227
154,360 121,677

Softpower International Limited 5&HEIFRER2AF]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20. Cash and bank balances (cont’d)

21.

The conversion of RMB denominated balances

i & M55 R M

20. HERMBITHER(E)

BAARBEZERARBINERBZFES

into foreign currencies and the remittance of B H AR B At - 2B AR B U B B 2 SNE B Il
these funds out of Mainland China is subject to FEFRFR o
the exchange control restrictions imposed by the
PRC government.
Share capital 21. =&
Number of
shares issued
BBITROEE
Thousands HK$’000
T T
At 1 January and RZZFE—AOF—H—BK
31 December 2014 +=—RA=+—H 13,332,700 26,665
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—HF—H—H 13,332,700 26,665
Effect on share consolidation f&ina ftz o2 (11,999,430) -
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF+-_A=+—H 1,333,270 26,665
(a) Issued shares (@ BBITRA
Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed BERZZT—HF— A+ HETHRE

in the special general meeting held on
16 January 2015, every ten shares of the
Company’s issued and unissued shares
with par value of HK$0.002 per share have
been consolidated into one share with
par value of HK$0.02 with effect from 19
January 2015.

All issued shares are fully paid.

=1l LLEI’J L/?% %*Q:g i

A% 18 0.002 ,%mzaﬁéﬁ)&ﬂ*ﬂﬁxmé
HA—IREEO0.02B T Z&MD -

PIEEBRTRNHEEHR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

21. Share capital (cont’d)

(b)

Share option scheme

The share option scheme approved by
the shareholders of the Company on
24 June 2004 (the “2004 Scheme”) has
expired on 23 June 2014. Thereafter, no
further options will be granted under the
2004 Scheme but the subsisting options
granted thereunder prior to the expiry date
will continue to be valid and exercisable
in accordance with the terms of the 2004
Scheme.

At the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 21 May 2015, the
shareholders of the Company approved
the adoption of a new share option
scheme (the “2015 Scheme”) under which
the directors of the Company may grant
options to eligible persons to subscribe for
the Company’s shares subject to the terms
and conditions as stipulated therein. Unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, the 2015
Scheme will remain valid for a period of 10
years from the date of its adoption.

No share option under the 2015 Scheme
was granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed, during the current year nor

outstanding as at 31 December 2015.

Softpower International Limited 5&HEIFRER2AF]

21. Bg& (48)

(b)

BB RERT &

ARBBRRR -_FTMFE A TOAH
EZBRAE B —Z22HFHE DER
“E-NEFERAZT=HEm W& #
ERE_TSTMFAIABRLBERE B
RJER B BATAR IR — ST N ERIR
H 2 BB AR R AR B B R T T 1THE

R-E—RAFAA-+—BERITZEAAT
IRERAF RS L ANQRIRE A ETR A
BRETE (== —RFT8)) - &t
RARIEFAAEESA TR BRE -
NREARERG EEAX T —AFE
EI3RE 2GR RAGHFETRRIR © Br BITHUH
SRIEEIIN  —E—RFF e EFEMA
BAREET AR R A AN -

RAFEHEHRETANBRERE_F
—HFFEIERL 176 IR
NEBRERN_T-—AF+-_A=1+—H
R ARIETTE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21. Share capital (cont’d)

(b)

Share option scheme (cont’d)

The Company was authorised to grant
share options under the 2015 Scheme for
subscription of up to a total of 133,327,000
shares, representing 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date
of adoption. The directors of the Company
are authorised at their absolute discretion,
to invite any eligible participants as defined
in the Scheme, to take up options to
subscribe for shares in the Company. The
subscription price will be determined by
the Board, but shall be at least the highest
of (a) the closing price of shares as stated
in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet on the date on which the
relevant options are deemed to be granted
and accepted in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme (“the Commencement
Date”), which must be a day on which
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange is open
for the business of dealing in securities
(“Trading Day”); (b) the average closing
price of the shares as stated in the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet for the five Trading Days immediately
preceding the Commencement Date;
and (c) the nominal value of the shares.
A consideration of HK$10 is payable on
acceptance of the grant of option. The
maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the
2015 Scheme may not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of adoption of the 2015 Scheme.
The number of shares may be refreshed
by the approval of the shareholders and
the refreshed limit of the number of shares
must not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of the
approval of the refreshed limit.

i & M55 R M

21. Bg& (48)

(b)

BRAESTE (|)

AR ERERE-S—AFEIRLE
& LA R BT 2 & ££ 133,327,000 A% A% 15
EREMBHARAREZEITIRAZ10% -
BEAAAZESFEHNBEREBFEMNEER
2HE(FERBRETS) EMNTTRBER
NAIRD 2 BRE - REEBRESSE
E 0 ERBIRR (a) B 1D A B B8 B AL 1%
RARBERETEIGRREL REMNE A
((FmBHE])) (EABBBMIMCEESE
BEEX AR E))) EEBHIT
HIREXRATIRZKLTE : (b) DR B
REHMEER AR A EEAHINE
HREXRMB2 FHKRTE: R(c)RHE
B=FF2HEE BEARL2E8MHER
RS AR ABIZT10B T2 RIE - BiE
“E-hFFERLEZEBRES R KRG
BE=#E  TERERA-ZT—AFiE
B HARRREEITIRAZ10% ° fxinE B
AR EE R - MEEH 2RHEE
FRAFHBAETH ER 2 BHAART]
BEITIRANZ 10% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

21. Share capital (cont’d)

(b)

Share option scheme (cont’d)

As a result of the share consolidation
become effective, the exercise price and
the number of consolidated shares to be
issued upon the exercise of the outstanding
options granted under the 2004 Scheme
have been adjusted in accordance with
the terms of the 2004 Scheme and Rule
17.03(13) of the Listing Rules.

Share information below has been
restated to reflect the effect of the share
consolidation effective on 19 January 2015.

Movements in the number of share options
outstanding during the year are as follows:

21. Bg& (48)

Date of grant Date of maturity Exercise Price

o= s &8
HK$
BT

3 December 2009 2 December 2019 071

“ERNETCAZR “E-NErCAZR

5 May 2010 4 May 2020 083

“2-ZE7/RR “2-EET WA

8 June 2011 7 June 2021 0.392

“2——55ANR ZE-5RAA

Total %

Out of 20,300,000 (2014: 20,900,000)
outstanding share options, 17,420,000
(2014: 17,100,000) share options were
exercisable.

Softpower International Limited 5&HEIFRER2AF]

(b)

BRAESTE (|)

RRDEFFERE  BREBEAARAREE
PUFETEIER B E M RITENERENITE
BRRITERETETZEHKRGEE
BRZETNEFFENGERE ETRBE
17.03(13) E/EH LA T -

TEHNEBREHCKEIARRR -F
—HE-ATNBERRNHEFHTE

FR - RARTTEBBRIERE ZESHNT

31 December 31 December
2014 | Granted and 2015
“5-ME accepted  Exercised Lapsed ZB-1f
T-A=T-H | CRittEH BT B&% +ZA=1-H
18,300,000 - - - 18,300,000
1,600,000 - - (600,000) 1,000,000
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
20,900,000 - - (600,000) 20,300,000

220,300,000 fi% (== —PO4F : 20,900,000)
B P& 4 - 17,420,000 — & — P £ ¢
17,100,000) % &R 71 -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21. Share capital (cont’d)

(b)

Share option scheme (cont’d)

The estimated fair value of share options
granted is based on the Binomial model.
The significant inputs into the models are as

21. BR=*

(b)

8 June 2011
—Z—E£XANA

HK$0.392
49%

10 years
10%
2.26%
2.75%

i & M55 R M

(¥|)

BIREST & ()
EREHERENGESAABERE=BR
HMEEAFTE B AZREANFEELEMN
™

5 May 2010 3 December 2009
“2-2£1A%N “BEAFTAZH
HK$0.83 HK$0.71

55% 54%

10 years 10 years

10% 105

2.86% 2.16%

3.10% 3.58%

follows:

Date of grant BHAL
Exercise price 11
Expected volatiity BERE
Option life i 3
Annual risk free interest rate FEEERTI%
Dividend yield ERX

Fair value NrEE

HK$0.14 ~ HK$0.16

HK$0.26 ~ HK$0.38

HK$0.21 ~ HK$0.31

The expected volatility measured at the
standard deviation is based on the historical

data of the weekly share price movement of
comparable companies of the Company.

BREBREZAEBZABREDHERARFZ

AL R R BHR RN ER BB RO L BUR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

21. Share capital (cont’d)

(b)

Softpower International Limited

Share option scheme (cont’d)

0)

(i)

On 3 December 2009, 59,200,000
share options were offered to
and accepted by Directors and
employees, with an exercise price of
HK$0.71 and an option period of 10
years commencing from 3 December
2009 and expiring on 2 December
2019 (both days inclusive). The
options granted to the grantees are
vested in stages and be exercised in
the following manner:

Maximum percentage of the options exercisable

AiEZREEERE ST

20%
20%
20%
20%
20%

On 5 May 2010, 1,600,000 share
options were offered to and accepted
by a Director and an employee,
with an exercise price of HK$0.83
and an option period of 10 years
commencing from 5 May 2010 and
expiring on 4 May 2020 (both days
inclusive). The options granted to the
grantees are vested in stages and be
exercised in the following manner:

Maximum percentage of the options exercisable

TRz RRERTE AL

20%
20%
20%
20%
20%

BHEBRARDE

21. Bg& (48)

(b) FERRAESHE ()

0)

RZEEANFE+TZH=H  x&
EREEREEZOTE EE RN
59,200,000 {7 & it - 2 EHEARE 2
TEEA0TLE T R BRERR A+
¢ B-ZTZNFT=-—A=BHABE

T-NFT-_A-BIH(BFEE
EME) - BT ARANBRERD

PEERSRE - WILLA T AT ¢

Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the options

TR EE 2 Lz R

3/6/2010 - 2/12/2019
3/6/2011 - 2/12/2019
3/6/2012 - 2/12/2019
3/6/2013 - 2/12/2019
3/6/2014 - 2/12/2019

(i)

N_Z—ZTFERAFRA AEERE
£ X EE B4 E 5 491,600,000
MERE ZEEREZTEER
0. 83,%7E&E§H£$%EHEBE7‘%+¢ = o

—ZFERARARKRE-_S-TF
EHEEHW@%éimmoﬁ%
ERANBREGOBESEE - Wik
AT A RAT{E

Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the options

fTEEmMmEREE S Lz MR

5/11/2010 - 4/5/2020
5/11/2011 - 4/5/2020
5/11/2012 - 4/5/2020
5/11/2013 - 4/5/2020
5/11/2014 - 4/5/2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21. Share capital (cont’d)

(b) Share option scheme (cont’d)

(i)

On 8 June 2011, 1,000,000 share
options were offered to and accepted
by a Director, with an exercise price
of HK$0.392 and an option period of
10 years commencing from 8 June
2011 and expiring on 7 June 2021
(both days inclusive). The options
granted to the grantees are vested
in stages and be exercised in the
following manner:

Maximum percentage of the options exercisable

ATRZRREREE AL

20%
20%
20%
20%
20%

Vesting of certain options granted to certain
employees are subject to achievement of profit

target.

21. Bg& (48)

& M55 R

(b) EBRRFESHE (&)

(i)

RZT——FXANR  A&£EER
— U EEZ I E EE 491,000,000
MEBRE ZZEREZTEER
03928 L REREHR AT F © /B
—E——F X AN\BRABE=_ZT=—
FARAALRIBA(BREEEMA) - &
FTERBEANBREGHORERSEE - 1
RATARATE -

Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the options

fTEEmmREE S Lz RR

8/12/2011 - 7/6/2021
8/12/2012 - 7/6/2021
8/12/2013 - 7/6/2021
8/12/2014 - 7/6/2021
8/12/2015 - 7/6/2021

BYaTREZE THBREREZRENBRITA
FETERES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERERME

22. Reserves

At 1 January 2014
Profi for the year
Currency translation
differences
Share based payment
Actuarial loss on post-
employment benefi
obligations, net of tax
Release of exchange
reserve upon disposal
of a subsidiary
Transfer upon lapse
of share options

At 31 December 2014
and 1 January 2015

Proft for the year
Currency translation
differences
Share based payment
Actuarial loss on post-
employment beneft
obligations, net of tax
Transfer upon lapse
of share options

At 31 December 2015

RZE-mE-A-A
ERRR
EhaEzE

IR AERANT
BB ERY
FEER
HRH#E
HEHELT
ZEifRZ0R

REREAIER

R-E-IE
t-A=t-BR
“5-1f-f-H

EEaH

EHAEES

IR ARRANR
BRIKENER
WRERR
AR
RERENER

R-2-1%
+-A=t-H

22. il
Share
Capital Merger based
Share reserve reserve Statutory Other ~ Exchange payment Retained

premium (note (i) (note (i) reserve reserve reserve resenve eamings Total

HRf

L3 AR BERD #E

RiER (WEEE () () HERN RfbE EREH fIREH &l &0
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin T Th Tin Thn ThT Tin Th T
126,618 34,115 3,700 U 930 2,266 8,784 128,126 304,563
- - - - - - - 21,729 2,729
- - - - - (158 - - (158)
- - - - - - 340 - 340
- - - - (1) - - - (419)
i - - = - (s - - (L6
- - - = - - (3,786) 3,786 =
126,618 34,115 3,700 2% 519 457 5,338 153,641 324,412
- - - - - - - 34,023 34,023
- - - - - 246 - - 246
- - - - - - 120 - 120
- - - - (340) - - - (340)
- - - - - - (192) 192 -
126,618 34,115 3,700 2% 179 703 5,266 187,856 358,461
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22. Reserves (cont’d)

23.

Notes:

U

(i)

The capital reserve of the Group arose from
acquisition of the remaining interests in a
subsidiary in 1999. The balance represents
the excess of the fair value attributable to the
net assets and liabilites acquired over the
consideration paid.

The merger reserve of the Group arising from
the Group reorganisation is determined by the
difference between the nominal value of shares of
the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares deemed to have been issued.

& M55 R

22, il (&)

i

REE 2 EARFERRN — NANFUWRE —FHH
BARZER TR - ARBRIEMBAFEER
BEZAREBHEXNREZER -

AEBREESAMEL Z A GRE - DRRE
SESEEAZMB AR RN HEERIGIED #T
ZARRBBEMEEMERZ ZREE °

Borrowings 23. faR
2015 2014
~E2—-1¥ —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Current bk FHET FA&T
Trust receipt loans, secured (note (i) BHEIPE TR E R (FIEE () 61,570 69,170
Trust receipt loans, unsecured IR SR E R 10,309 6,783
Bank overdrafts (Note 20) (note (i)) #1758 > (FsE 20) (FE () 1,164 =
73,043 75,953

Notes: BT

The carrying amounts of the trust receipt loans
and bank overdrafts approximate their fair values.
As at 31 December 2015, the banking facilities
were secured by corporate guarantees and
bank deposits of approximately HK$61,000,000
(2014: HK$68,699,000).

ERRBEEREBRTEY 2 FASEAFEAR
ERE R=ZT—RAF+=-A=+—08 Ri78k
& B APER KR IRTTF54961,000,000% 7T (=
T —PU4E : 68,699,000 T) {EHIH o
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e M B H R

23. Borrowings (cont’d)

Notes: (cont’d)

(i) The borrowings are denominated in the following
currencies:

Hong Kong dollars T
(iiy  The effective interest rates (per annum) of bank

borrowings at the financial reporting date are as
follows:

Trust receipt loans and EEUUEER
bank overdrafts RIRITES
24. Deferred taxation

Deferred tax liabilities to

be settled after 12 months FEEFRIBEE

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using tax
rates of the relevant subsidiaries applicable to the
period when the asset is expected to be realised
or the liability to be settled, based on tax rates
that have been substantively enacted by the
financial reporting date.

Softpower International Limited 5&HEIFRER2AF]

23. &8 (i)

BieE : (A&

(i) EEATIEEIIE

2015
1%
HK$°000
F#xT

73,043

2014
—Z—uF
HK$’000
FHT

75,953

(i)  REBHER - RITEEZBREFEMAT

24, BEERIF

R+ —EAREEZ

2015
1%
%

2.51

2015
—E—-hF
HK$’000
THT

(137)

2014
—Z—uF
%

241

2014
—E—F
HK$’'000
THTT

(323)

EERBERAEBEEINABNBAREREESR
B aEaE 2 BRMEA B E (RUKHRE
AERmEERM) (E2 8B -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The movement in deferred tax assets and
liabilities during the year, without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the
same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

i & M55 R M

24. Deferred taxation (cont’d) 24, RIERIA ()
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when EAEEREN SR AR IEE EER IR IEA &
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current WY - MIEERIBEE MRERIEEEY ME—
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when RIS HE RN - —RIERT A B sk [E /Y B =R AR
the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to NEIBRSAEAFELEE - A REIEE
income tax levied by the same taxation authority EERIERIH & B E AR o
on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.
The net movement on the deferred tax account is RIERIEAR B < BB FEEMNT ¢
as follows:
2015 2014
—Z—hF —Z O
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
At 1 January n—HA—H (323) (289)
Credited/(charged) to
income statement (Note 10) Tz RPE A (F08R) (MiEE 10) 119 (115)
Credited to equity =P ETA 67 81
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 (137) (323)

BEEBIREENBBERFRN 2 EE CRET RRA
R RS2 SE8R) 20T

Deferred tax assets REBIEEE
Tax losses
kT o]
HK$’000
F#ET
At 1 January 2014 and 2015 RZE—ER_T—hFE—H—H -
Credited to income statement EWERETA 182
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF+ZA=+—H 182

—Z—AFFH Annual Report 2015
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e M B H R

24. Deferred taxation (cont’d)

24. BIERIA (1)

Deferred tax liabilities

At 1 January 2014 RZE-—NFE—A—H

Charged to income statement EERNG

Charged to equity TEREE R IR

At 31 December 2014 and RZE-—RF+=A=+—HK
1 January 2015 —E-h%—-H—H

Charged to income statement EER NG

Credited to equity FERERRETA

At 31 December 2015 RZZ—AF+-A=t1—H

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for
tax losses carried forward to the extent that the
realisation of the related tax benefit through the
future taxable profits is probable. The Group
did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of HK$7,785,000 (2014: HK$8,474,000) in
respect of accumulated tax losses amounting
to HK$41,887,000 (2014: HK$47,449,000)
as at 31 December 2015, that can be carried
forward against future taxable income. As
at 31 December 2015, the accumulated tax
losses amounting to HK$10,283,000 (2014:
HK$7,589,000) will be expired in five years. There
is no expiry period for the other tax losses.

Softpower International Limited 5&HEIFRER2AF]

EEHBEEE
Remeasurement
gain of
Accelerated post-employment
tax depreciation benefit obligations Total
REm &
R g
MERERE EMERE o]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET TET
(105) (184) (289)
(115) - (115)
- 81 81
(220) (103) (323)
(63) - (63)
- 67 67
(283) (36) (319)

RIEFTSIRIE A & T A FE AR B M s Al B iR R
2 P SR A i M) 2 R T B AT AS B 2 B TR B R ME
R REBUWAR-ZE—RHE+-_A=1+—
H Al &8 DA S R R E R B A 2 RET RIS
841,887,000 % 7T (= F — M 4F : 47,449,000 %8
7L ) HERIRIE FT{S T I & & 7,785,000 L (= F
—PH4 : 8,474,00087T) c R=ZE—RF+=AH
=+—HB ' ZF2FHIEEEE 10,283,000 7T
(ZZ— M4 : 7,589,000/870) ' HRAFAZT
By o HhFRIB/E 8N m AR o




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25. Trade and other payables 25.
Trade payables B S IR
Accrued expenses and TERER R

other payables (note) HAb R (i EE)
Notes:

Included in other payables of the Group was a
provision for a customer claim of HK$3,694,000 (2014:
HK$3,694,000) made for a project in Hong Kong in
prior years. During the year, management reassessed
the circumstances and considered that the amount
of provision made as at 31 December 2015 remains
adequate but not excessive.

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade
payables, based on the invoice date, is as

follows:

Within 30 days 30 KA

31 to 60 days 31XE60K
61 to 90 days 61 KXE 90K
Over 90 days 838 90 X

i & M55 R M

BHRHEMEMRR
2015 2014
“Z—-1F —T-MmF
HK$°000 HK$’000
F&x TAET
26,145 32,572
40,496 40,592
66,641 73,164

PYEE

BREEAEENEMENTKT @ RBEFE - NEEH
—THR BB RIAE B {EH 3,694,000 7T ( — T — P04 :
3,694,000 7T) WEFHERE RAFERN - B
BEFTERIERRAEZEHER=Z—AF+=A
=t+—BINRHINRTBES -

AEBEBZERMNRIBENRERREZBHAS T
T

2015 2014
—Z—-1F —E-mF
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#x THET
22,257 28,768
2,491 856
1,362 715

35 2,233

26.145 32,572

—Z—AFFH Annual Report 2015
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e M B H R

25. Trade and other payables (cont’d) 25 BHRHEMBESRIA (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and REEZE S REMBENKEZREASEIRIAT
other payables are denominated in the following EHEHE -
currencies:
2015 2014
—E—-hF —ZT—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAIT
Hong Kong dollars BT 42,258 46,462
UsD ETT 17,006 19,328
RMB AR 5,702 5,361
EURO ERIT 209 -
Others HAb 1,466 2,013
66,641 73,164
26. Commitments 26. 7&iE
(@) Capital commitments (a) EBEXBX
Capital expenditure contracted for at the MNEKRERITARIEBNREENE AR
end of the year but not yet incurred is as LUNNE
follows:
2015 2014
—E—RF —EF—gF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAIT

Capital expenditure in respect of the ~ BLEEE T R] AERERE
acquisition of motor vehicles ISR AR B
contracted for but not provided in B & AR sZ
the consolidated financial statements

146 Softpower International Limited @A EIFRER A =]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BERRME

26. Commitments (cont’d)

(b) Operating lease commitments (b)

i RET
R
BE—FETRBESF

Land and buildings
Not later than one year
Later than one year and
not later than five years

Equipment and motor vehicles &5 M /95
T —F
iR —FETHBARF

Not later than one year
Later than one year and
not later than five years

The lease terms are between one to five years,
and the majority of lease agreements are
renewable at the end of the lease period at
market rate.

26. ik (1)

ReBERE

2015 2014
—Z—hEF —T g
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T FHT
18,596 18,280
14,214 27,871
32,810 46,151
590 598

652 1,105
1,242 1,703
34,052 47,854
EAHNREEH

HESRNF—=0F  TE2WHE
JEmRIZTEEL -
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fm e M B HRRME

27. Notes to the consolidated statement

of cash flows

(@) Cash flows from operations

Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of
property, plant and
equipment, net (note)
Interest income
Interest expense
Provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables
Provision for impairment of
inventories
Fair value losses on financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Dividend income on financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Share based payment
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary
Changes in working capital:
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and
other receivables
Increase in financial assets at
fair value through profit or
loss
(Decrease)/Increase in trade
and other payables

Net cash generated
from operations

Softpower International Limited 5&5EIRER2AF]

(a) REXBHRBZRERE

BiALE)
BTSIfEH B -
¥ - R RS

HEYR - BER&ELZ

B (Wes) F8 (BT
FMEHA
FEXH

B 5 R EMRUGRRER
FERERE

BRRBEFMABRZ
EREENQAEEER

BARBEFABSECSREE
HIBCEMA

PARSAD B R 5 2k
HE—FE B A AR
%gﬁ@ﬁﬁi
& (),
%%&ﬁmﬁw R, (h0)

BAfEBEFARRLZ

SRE AR
B 5 RAMBARORD),1Em

REXBHEREFR

27. IFEHeRERME

2015 2014
“E-1% — g4
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
39,585 26,091
2,178 1,409
127 (87)
(1,282) (1,267)
1,326 1,586
860 43
1,316 1,078

94 -

(49) -

120 340

- 871
(21,956) 3,640
17,200 (11,483)
(1,766) =
(6,379) 18,469
31,374 40,690




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BERRME

27. Notes to the consolidated statement 27. FERERERMEE)
of cash flows (cont’d)

(a) Cash flows from operations (cont’d) () REXBFEZHEERE ()
Note: Proceeds from disposal of property, plant fisE : HEYME  BERREZFMSHRERRE
and equipment comprises:

2015 2014

—Z-5F —T—mF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET T

Net book amount BRESHE 405 3

(Loss)/gain on disposal HE 2z (E18), M (127) 87

Proceeds from disposal HEFTS KA 278 90
Represented by: R&:

Cash BRe 278 90

—Z—RFHFFH Annual Report 2015 149
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27. Notes to the consolidated statement

of cash flows (cont’d)

(b) Disposal of a subsidiary

(b)

Details of disposal of a subsidiary as

follows:

Net assets disposed
Property, plant and equipment
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables

Net assets
Exchange reserve released
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary

Satisfied by:
Cash received
Cash consideration receivable

Analysis of net cash inflow in respect
of disposal of a subsidiary:
Cash received
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of

Net cash inflow in respect of
disposal of a subsidiary

Softpower International Limited 5&HEIFRER2AF]

EHEFEE

N BERR
B9 REMEYR
{31
ReRReEEY
B9 REMENTR

FEE
A
HE—RRELRNER

XA

EWRE
REHBRER

BRHE—RNBARZ

BERAFEDN -
EWES
BHEZRERALEEY

BRHLE—RNBARZ

BERAFE

27. REBRKNERMEGE)

HE—FENEAF
HE—RBRRFBEIEMNT

2015
~2-if
HK$000
TR

2014

—F-mF

HK$'000
TAT

2,734
1,264
9,371
1,583
(5,070)

9,882
(1,651)
(871)

7,360

2,745
4,615

4,615

2,745
(1,583)

4,615

1,162




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

28. Related party transactions

(a)

(b)

Key management compensation

Salaries and other short term
employee benefits

Pension costs — defined
contribution plans

Share based payment

Rental payment to a related party

Rental paid to a related
company (note)

(Bf=E)

Note:

The Group paid rental of a motor vehicle and
licence to a company controlled by Mr. Lai
Guanglin, the Chairman and executive director
of the Company, for a fixed sum of RMB12,000
(equal to HK$15,000) per month as agreed by
both parties. This is also a connected transaction
which is exempted under Rule 14A.76 of the
Listing Rules.

i & M55 R M

28. HEALE S

(@)

FekHEMmEHEEREN

BIARERAN — ERHEKEE

VARR 17 A EEHE 2 53K

(b)

XNBEE—REERT

TEEE A B RN
2015 2014
—E—hEF —EF—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T FHBT
18,573 17,030
122 116
120 294
18,815 17,440
BREEALZFHES
2015 2014
—$-5F | -—T IF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TH#T FHBT
180 —
fifs -

AEERBERMERAEER —HBEARRE
EFRHAITEE Lai Guanglin FE £ HIR A TS
S e S A EEE A 12,000 AR (SR
15,000/87T) © LR S I AIRE EiTiR 8 14A.76
EMESRHENEERS -
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e M B HRRME

29. Statement of financial position and

reserve movement of the Company

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets

Prepayments and other receivables
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Cash and bank balances

Total assets

EQUITY
Equity holders
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Other payables
Amounts due to subsidiaries

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

The statement of financial position of the
Company was approved by the board of

HE
FREEE
iSEIIEUNCIE E=

L E R E

BT R B LA UK RO
JRE W B /B A B K IR

B e RIRITHEER

HeE

e
BREFEA
LN
i

e §

R

REAR

H At FEAS 500R
ANLRIEPNCIE/

#HaR
HESRAR
B EERE
HRERRDRR

Directors on 30 March 2016 and was signed on

its behalf:

Lai Guanglin
Director 2%

152 Softpower International Limited @A EIFRERAD =]

Note
B &E

29. ERFMBRRARR EIREE

As at 31 December

»+=—B=+—8
2015 2014
—E-RF —T—mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
23 8
90,268 90,155
90,291 90,163
725 637
29,550 23,466
3,013 1,449
33,288 25,552
123,579 115,715
26,665 26,665
78,040 70,890
104,705 97,555
3,311 2,527
15,563 15,633
18,874 18,160
123,579 115,715
14,414 7,392
104,705 97,555

ARANBBANRERETEN T —R"F=
A=1Ritx  ARKEFSRE:

Yu Ben Ansheng Si R4

Director 2%



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29. Statement of financial position and
reserve movement of the Company

(con

Notes:

)

t'd)

Reserve movement of the Company

At 1 January 2014 RZZ—-ME—-A—H
Profit for the year FERH

Share based payment PARRD AR RN
Transfer upon lapse of R A R A

share options

At 31 December 2014 and RZZ-ME+=A=+—H
1 January 2015 k=ZF-hF—A—-H

Profit for the year FERA

Share based payment PARRD AR AR

Transfer upon lapse of S} PR

share options

At 31 December 2015

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares issued by the Company in
exchange for all the issued ordinary shares of
World Trade Bun Kee (BVI) Ltd. and the value
of net assets of the underlying subsidiaries
acquired by the Company in 2000. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus is distributable to the
shareholders, subject to a solvency test. At
the Group level, the contributed surplus is
reclassified into its component of reserves of the
underlying subsidiaries.

& M B R

29. ERFMBRRRR EIREE (1)

R-ZE-hF+_A=1+—H

Bt -
) ARRFEES
Contributed Share based
Share surplus payment Accumulated
premium (note) reserve deficits Total
gAEE URhhAER
BiRaR (PHeE)  EOfERGEGE RitEiR ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
126,618 86,759 8,784 (153,530) 68,631
- - - 1,919 1,919
- - 340 - 340
- = (3,786) 3,786 =
126,618 86,759 5,338 (147,825) 70,890
- - - 7,030 7,030
- - 120 - 120
- - (192) 192 -
126,618 86,759 5,266 (140,603) 78,040

RAR 2B ABERTIIEAR R A A EWorld
Trade Bun Kee (BVI) Ltd. 2302 217 & @M% 3
TZBROEESERNARFFUEEERBARRZ
TETFEAEFEMERZERE - BEARE
—NN\—FREE(EEE]) - BABRKRERESR
AENERBEF AR ZERT Aok TR
R EAKBEZRE £ BARBRETHDELRAE
RAMT B A A 2 A BAERK IS ©
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e M B HRRME

30. Benefits and interests of directors

(disclosures required by section

383 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies

(Disclosure of Information about

Benefits of Directors) Regulation
(Cap. 622G) and HK Listing Rules)

()

Name of Director

Ll Guangin

Yu Ben Ansheng (note ()
LaiFuin

UKean Seng

Wong Yee Shuen, Wison
Chen Wei Wen

YangLi

Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments

The remuneration of each director and
the chief executive for the year ended 31
December 2014 and 2015 is set out below:

12

La Guangin
SRE(HH)
i
i
i
REX

i

30. EEMARNELR (REFE(OTEH)
(58622 ) EIBIER( AT (IBREEF
SEHE) ARG (B622GE) RER(L™
A TE M 4F tH YK 58 )

(@ EERTHAZMS

BREENTRRAENEBE _T—HFR-
E-AF+-_A=+—BLFENHEHE
0y Ul

Forthe year ended 31 December 2015
§ECS-TETIRST-ALER

FEER(FERELARRMBLTLR RARRTIRERNAS

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a director, whether of the Company or ts subsidiary undertaking

Emoluments paid

or receivable

inrespect

of director's

other senvice in

connection with

Remunerations  the management

Employers  paidorreceivable  of the affairs of

Estimated money  contributions to a in respect of the Company

Discretionary Housing value of other  retirementbenefit  accepting officeas  orits subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses allowance  benefts (note (i) scheme director undertaking Total

HERKLTE

EHRLARRN

HERREES  SHRMANE

EHURHREHRE SEEHAR  -RARMEE  SRAAIM
fig it Bt REAR  ME(WE) bj it i) b Bhsme &
HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK§000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
Tin T TR T T TR T T Tin
3268 m 23 - 5907
25 41 14 18 204
- 1542 50 19 18 20
20 - - - - 20
200 200
160 - 150
20 1 n
750 AL 1208 2604 3% 1838

Softpower International Limited &1 EIFRERA




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. Benefits and interests of directors
(disclosures required by section
383 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies
(Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation
(Cap. 622G) and HK Listing Rules)
(cont’d)

(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments (cont’d)

& M B R

30. EEMARNELR (REFE(OTEH)
(58622 ) EIBIER( AT (IBREEF
SEHE) RO (B622GE) RER(L™
AR TE M 4 tHAY K S ) (&)

(@) ESRTERARME (H)

Forthe year ended 31 December 2014
HETR-TETA=t-ALEE

Emoluments paid or recehable i respect of & person's senices as a diector, whether of the Compeny or s subsidary undertaking

FAEE (MERADTIARBDALR RARRT A

Emoluments paid or

Tecelvabl nrespect

of drector's other

senice n connecton

vith tie management

Employer's Remunerations ofthe afars of

Estmated mongy ~~ conirhutionstoa  paid or receivable n the Company

Discretonary Housing valleofother ~ retrement beneft  respectof acceptng oris subsidiary
Fegs Salay bonuses dlowance  benefis (ot scheme  offce as drector Undertaking Totd

REEAATIL

At HRARTES  MEAACRNSH

-t FETHRI R REARESRHR
he i Bt FER (i) GV Bhome  xmgmiaHe ]
HKS000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000
Name ofDiector 3114 Thr i Tht ThT Thr Tt AL L Thr
Lzl Guangin Ll Guangin = 329 n 174 = = = 5,268
YuBen Ansheng ot ) AFE () - 284 k1 140 1 - - 288
LaiFuln BRE - 1486 n 168 1 - - 19%
UKean Seng G N - - i m
Tsang Wai Yip (ot i) EE(R) 13 5 18
Wong Yee Shuen, Wison EE 0 § 206
Clen WeiWen Rex 15 u 14
Yang i ] 0 16 26
882 m %7 2159 U - - 11,084
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